Public Document Pack

Agenda for a meeting of the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to be held Remotely on Thursday,
22 October 2020 at 4.00 pm
Members of the Committee – Councillors
LABOUR
CONSERVATIVE
Azam
D Green
Kamran Hussain
Watson
Tait
Shafiq
Alternates:
LABOUR
Akhtar
Mir
T Hussain
Nazir
Thirkill
Salam

Bibby
Goodall
Riaz

CONSERVATIVE
Pollard
Townend
Sullivan

LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND
INDEPENDENT GROUP
Griffiths

LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND
INDEPENDENT GROUP
Reid



Please note that, under the current circumstances only Members and Alternates on
the Committee will receive paper copies of the agenda, however the agenda and
reports can be viewed on the Councils agenda and minutes website five clear
working days in advance of the meeting.



The meeting will be held remotely, Members and officers in advance of the
meeting will be sent via email, instructions and a link on how to join the
meeting remotely.



A webcast of the meeting will be available to view live on the Council’s website at
https://bradford.public-i.tv/core/portal/home and later as a recording.



Approximately 30 minutes before the start time of the meeting the
Governance Officer will set up the electronic conference arrangements initially in
private and bring into the conference facility the Members and officers so that any
issues can be raised before the start of the meeting. The officers presenting the
reports at the meeting will have been advised by the Governance Officer of their
participation and will be brought into the electronic meeting at the appropriate time.



Members should be on their own when attending remotely and ensure that any
confidential papers are not visible via the technology used.



Any Councillors or members of the public who wish to make a contribution at the
meeting are asked to email yusuf.patel@bradford.gov.uk by 10.30 on Tuesday 20
October 2020 and request to do so. In advance of the meeting those requesting to
participate will be advised if their proposed contribution can be facilitated and those
participants that can be will be provided with details how to electronically access the
meeting. Councillors and members of the public with queries regarding making
representations to the meeting please email Yusuf Patel.

From:
To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Yusuf Patel/Fatima Butt
Phone: 07970 411923/01274 432227
E-Mail: yusuf.patel@bradford.gov.uk

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1.

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)
The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

2.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
Notes:

3.

(1)

Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set
out in the Code of Conduct. Disclosable pecuniary interests
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2)

Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(3)

Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4)

Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.
(Yusuf Patel - 01274 434579)
4.

REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
The Committee is asked to note any referrals and decide how it wishes
to proceed, for example by incorporating the item into the work
programme, requesting that it be subject to more detailed examination,
or refer it to an appropriate Working Group/Committee.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES
5.

THE RELOCATION OF HER MAJESTY'S CORONER'S OFFICE
(HMCO)
The report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources Document
“J” – that contains Not For Publication Appendix 2 advises the
Committee on the proposed relocation of HMCO to alternative and
independent premises in Little Germany and to update on the financial
implications of technical design development. The existing premises,
co-located with the Bradford Magistrates’ Court, are not fit for purpose
and do not comply with current Health & Safety and DDA
requirements.
RecommendedThat the Committee note the authorisation by Executive on 6th
October 2020 to award additional capital funds to meet the current
budget deficit and authorisation for the Strategic Director
Corporate Resources, in consultation with the Leader, to take all
necessary decisions to implement the decision.
(Imran Khan – 01274 4326018)

6.

BRADFORD COUNCIL'S WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY 2015 - 2021
The Director of Human Resources will submit Document “K” which
provides a progress update to the Committee on the Council’s
Corporate Workforce Development Strategy 2015 – 2021.

RecommendedThat the contents of the report be noted.
(Anne Lloyd – 01274 437335)
7.

MANAGING ATTENDANCE SCRUTINY REVIEW
The report of the Committee (Document “L”) contains the findings
from the Managing Attendance Scrutiny Review.
RecommendedThat the Committee adopts the findings contained within the draft
Managing Attendance Scrutiny Review Report.
(Mustansir Butt – 01274 432574)

8.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK
PROGRAMME 2020/21
The Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee will
submit a report (Document “M”) which sets out the Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme for 2020/21.
Recommended –
(1)

That members consider and comment on the areas of work
included in the work programme.

(2)

That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that
they may wish to conduct.
(Mustansir Butt - 01274 432574)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5/

Report of the Strategic Director Corporate Resources to
the meeting of Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
Committee held on 22nd October 2020

J
Subject:
The Relocation of Her Majesty’s Coroner’s Office (HMCO).

Summary statement:
Update on the proposed relocation of HMCO and associated cost implications,
prompted by concerns relating to the present accommodation in the Magistrates’
Court.

Joanne Hyde
Strategic Director
Corporate Resources

Portfolio: Leader of Council

Report Contact:
Imran Khan; Project Manager
Phone: (01274) 432618 / 07582 101749
E-mail: imran.khan@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area: Corporate

Page 1

1.

SUMMARY



This report is advising the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee (COSC) on
the proposed relocation of HMCO to alternative and independent premises in Little
Germany and to update on the financial implications of technical design
development. The existing premises, co-located with the Bradford Magistrates’
Court, are not fit for purpose and do not comply with current Health & Safety and
DDA requirements.

2.

BACKGROUND



Bradford Council has a lease for use of certain rooms within the Bradford
Magistrates’ Court building for use by HMCO. The demised area consists of one
court room, an office adjoining the court room (inner room), a corridor/waiting area
and two small offices. The lease commenced on 31 March 2005 and is for 999
years; however, accommodation additional to the court room remains subject to
termination by the Ministry of Justice at 28 days’ notice.



The existing HMCO accommodation is no longer fit for purpose. Any death can
have a devastating impact on the bereaved, but when that death is sudden,
unexplained or of an unknown cause it can only add to the negative impact on
families. A Coroner's inquest can be a traumatic, distressing and difficult experience
for anyone involved and the prescribed standard is to provide a welcoming and safe
environment for the bereaved. The existing accommodation does not provide this.
Additionally:



o

The families and witnesses access HMCO through the main Magistrates’
Court entrance, where they are required to queue to enter and are searched
alongside other Magistrates’ Court attendees.

o

The waiting area for HMCO is a corridor with little privacy; there are no
meeting rooms available to adjourn for private and confidential
conversations.

o

The location of the current HMCO, facing City Park, is not commensurate
with the privacy required for grieving families. Noise generated by visitors to
City Park can seem inappropriate and distracting to families during inquest
proceedings.

o

There is insufficient office accommodation for the existing staff and files with
teams working in cramped conditions across a number of small offices.

o

Additional accommodation is required as Coroner’s Officers employed by
West Yorkshire Police will relocate to work under the supervision of HM
Coroner in the same facility, irrespective of employer.

To meet the objective of providing a new, purpose-built, independent HMCO which
meets the needs of the service, the report of the Strategic Director Corporate
Resources to the meeting of Executive held on 10th July 2018 recommended the
purchase of a freehold property for development of a new HMCO at a total cost of
circa £2.35m. This recommendation was approved and £2.35m was made available
Page 2

in capital funds.


At the meeting of Executive held on 9th July 2019, following a site search, the
Strategic Director Corporate Resources recommended the purchase of the former
Digital Health Enterprise Zone Building (DHEZ), dividing the building back into two
separate entities to provide a self-contained block for the new HMCO, as outlined in
red on Appendix 1 – Site Location Plan, with the balance remaining as a selfcontained building for existing tenants and incubator space for businesses. This
recommendation was approved and the £2.35m capital fund was allocated towards
acquisition and redevelopment of this building into the new HMCO.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS



Section 24 Coroners and Justice Act (CJA) 2009 – In deciding how to discharge
its duties regarding the accommodation, Bradford Council must take into account
the views of HM Coroner. HM Coroner considers that the proposed new premises
are vital to enable the Coroner’s Service to provide the necessary facilities and
services to the bereaved. HM Coroner is fully supportive of the proposals.



The procurement of works for the redevelopment of the former DHEZ building into
the new HMCO will be single stage, restricted tender process to award a call-off
contract from Bradford Council’s General Contractors Framework. A quality analysis
was carried out when the framework agreement was established and the
procurement for the works will evaluate both cost and social value.



There is strong stakeholder support and engagement for this scheme. Both
Calderdale and Kirklees Councils are wholly supportive of the proposals and there
has been an encouraging visit to the proposed site by the Deputy Chief Constable
and Assistant Chief Constable of West Yorkshire Police. Further, the involvement of
HM Coroner and his team during the design development stages has been crucial
in ensuring the needs of the service are reflected in the proposals.



The Coroners’ Service provides a vital provision for families and the new HMCO will
offer innumerable benefits to the communities of Bradford, Kirklees and Calderdale,
transforming delivery of the service for the better. HM Coroner is keen to begin
community engagement to raise awareness of the proposed changes and the
benefits they will bring.



The key risk and main driver to this project and its programme is the urgent need for
HMCO to relocate away from its shared accommodation arrangement with
Magistrates Service. HM Coroner has publically lobbied for new premises since July
2016 and is keen to relocate as soon as possible. Subject to all necessary
approvals, the current timeline for the project is as follows:
o
o
o
o
o

Tendering – November and December 2020
Contractor Appointment – February 2021
Works Commencement – March 2021
Works Completion – November 2021
HMCO Relocation – December 2021

Page 3

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL



The original £2.35m capital allocation to support the relocation of HMCO was based
upon the original business case for the purchase of 4 Cater Street. Subsequent to
the decision to alternatively relocate HMCO into the DHEZ building, the project
scope has been redefined.



Whilst the budget of £2.35m approved by Executive in July 2018 included
expenditure towards site acquisition, shell works, and limited fit out works
concerned with loose and fixed fixtures, fittings and equipment, the business case
specifically excluded ICT, audio-visual or interactive installations, along with third
party professional fees and finance costs.



It was always envisaged that once the project scope was fully defined, the acquired
building was fully surveyed and the specific requirements of the service were fully
reflected in technical design development, the budget position would be revisited.



Through numerous site surveys and developing understanding of HMCO
requirements, there has emerged a more comprehensive list of elements which
were excluded from previous cost plans, such as:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

ICT passive and active network infrastructure;
Audio-visual interactive, communication and recording systems;
Security systems, including CCTV and access control;
Professional fees associated with the design team, consultants and surveys;
Dividing the former DHEZ building back into two self-contained entities;
Replacement of existing mechanical and electrical plant and installations;
Rectification of existing building condition and maintenance matters;
Dilapidation of existing HMCO accommodation and relocation/transition
costs for the service;
External works and signage in a conservation area;
Works to achieve acoustic standards in order that the business of the courts
can operate without undue disturbance;
COVID-19 impacts on preliminaries, risk and inflation costs.

Appendix 2 – Cost Build-Up (Not for Publication) details the estimations of cost
arrived at as result of technical design development at the end of RIBA Stage 4.

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES



Any new accommodation will meet the current concerns regarding safety,
availability, efficiency and ambience of HMCO. If the proposal is accepted, the
Project Management Team will ensure delivery of the proposals in accordance with
HMCO requirements, approved budget and established governance arrangements.

Page 4

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL



Section 24 Coroners and Justice Act (CJA) 2009 – the relevant authority (previously
called the Lead Authority [Bradford]) for a coroner area:
a) must secure the provision of whatever officers and other staff are needed by the
coroners for that area to carry out their functions;
b) must provide, or secure the provision of, accommodation that is appropriate to
the needs of those coroners in carrying out their functions;
c) must maintain, or secure the maintenance of, accommodation provided under
paragraph (b).



The Coroners (Inquests) Rule 2013 – R8: a coroner must complete an inquest
within six months of the date on which the coroner is made aware of the death, or
as soon as is reasonably practicable after that date. There is currently a lengthy
backlog of inquests which will see a reduction through the additional courtrooms
proposed in the new HMCO.



Section 16 CJA 2009 – any investigation not completed/discontinued within a year
must be reported to the Chief Coroner together with the reasons for the delay. The
Chief Coroner keeps a register and publishes the figures per coronial area. The
Chief Coroner has indicated he will also publish the reasons for the delay per
coronial area. The Chief Coroner provides an annual report on the Coronial system,
which includes the number and length of investigations, reasons for the length of
investigations/delays and measures he is taking to keep investigations from
becoming unnecessarily lengthy, to the Lord Chancellor to be laid before
Parliament.



Coroners (Investigation) Regulation 2013 – R4: a coroner must be available at all
times to address matters relating to an investigation into a death which must be
dealt with immediately and cannot wait until the next working day.



The coronial area covers the local authority areas of Bradford, Kirklees and
Calderdale. There is no capital contribution from Kirklees Council and Calderdale
Council; however, it is anticipated that Kirklees and Calderdale will contribute
towards initial set-up revenue costs and increased annual revenue costs. Currently
Bradford Council funds HMCO 44.98 per cent, Kirklees Council 37.1 per cent and
Calderdale Council 17.92 per cent.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
The new accommodation will assist in the promotion of equality.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Page 5

The new accommodation will assist in the promotion of sustainability. Innovations in
the efficient use of services and utilities consumption are an integral part of the
current design.
7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
Not applicable.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
The new accommodation will assist in the promotion of human rights.

7.6

TRADE UNION
The new accommodation will assist in the improvement of staff welfare.

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable.

7.8

AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)
Not applicable.

7.9

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
Not applicable.

7.10

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
Not applicable.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
Appendix 2 – Cost Build-Up is not for publication because it contains exempt
information under paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972 (information relating to the financial or business affairs and legal
privilege), and in all the circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

9.

OPTIONS
Not applicable.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Page 6

To note the authorisation by Executive on 6th October 2020 to award additional
capital funds to meet the current budget deficit and authorisation for the Strategic
Director Corporate Resources, in consultation with the Leader, to take all necessary
decisions to implement the decision.
11.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Site Location Plan
Appendix 2 – Cost Build-Up (Not for Publication)

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6/

Report of the Director of Human Resources to the
meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny to be held
on 22 October 2020

K
Subject:
Bradford Council’s Workforce Development Strategy 2015 - 2021

Summary statement:
This report provides a progress update to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny on the
Council’s Corporate Workforce Development Strategy 2015 – 2021. This was the
recommendation from Corporate Overview & Scrutiny of 10th October 2019 that a progress
report be submitted in 12 months’ time.

Anne Lloyd
Director of Human Resources

Portfolio:
Corporate

Report contact:
Wendy Ratcliffe, Head of Organisation
& Workforce Development

Overview and Scrutiny Area:
Corporate

Naomi Fernandez
Organisation and Workforce
Development Manager

Page 11

1.

SUMMARY

1.1.

This report provides an annual update on the Council’s Workforce Development
Strategy 2015 – 2021 and implementation progress.

1.2.

The 2015 Hay report made eight recommendations which were used to inform the
Workforce Development Strategy and programme of work. An initial report to Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny of 15 August 2015 , that can be found here, presented a set of
recommendations made in the Council commissioned Hay report that were aimed at
assisting the Council in its strategic workforce development and talent management, in
particular to improve workforce performance and productivity and to remove any
unjustifiable barriers to progression.

2.

BACKGROUND
The Context

2.1

In order to achieve our workforce development aspiration, we need to have the
right people, in the right roles at the right time. ‘Doing more with less’ has become a
reality as austerity has hit hard over the last decade. Employees need to have the
right skills, values, behaviours and environment to perform at their best. Moreover,
these qualities need to be augmented with an understanding of the aspirations for
our workforce, our district and our equality and inclusion ambitions.

2.2.

Clearly, a focus on optimally supporting our workforce, managers, leaders and
members is necessary. According to Gallup, individuals join organisations but leave
managers. Leadership evidence based has a cogent influence on improving
performance.

2.3.

Since progress has been reported against the ‘Workforce Development Strategy
2015 - 2021’ (Appendix 1), further analysis, engagement and feedback has been
sought. It is suggested that this approach through to 2021 is no longer relevant
and fit for purpose and a new strategy will be developed during 2020.

2.4.

The Executive summary, which follows, provides an overview of what we have
achieved in the key activity focus areas, what has been learned and how we plan to
progress. There has been progress but work remains to be done.

3.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

3.1.

In regard to apprenticeships, targets are exceeded and on track. For the public
sector target we have achieved 1.58% of 2.3% (2021 target). The council target of
500 apprentices at any one time is required to be in place by March 2021, this is
achievable for March if we realise the recruitment of a further 113 apprentices. As
apprenticeship programmes are currently a mixture of roll on and off programmes
to meet service recruitment needs (as opposed to purely planned cohort based
annual recruitment) there will be on going work to ensure that the target of 500
apprenticeships at any one time can be met.

3.2.

We have exceeded targets for Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME), and
disabled apprentices. The target for BAME apprentices is 30% and we have 38%,
for apprentices with disabilities it is 10% and we have 16%.
Page 2 of 37

Page 12

3.3.

For children leaving care we have continue to offer (100%) apprenticeship posts.
There is further inclusive recruitment work necessary, such as traineeships,
internships and pre-apprenticeships to ensure that Looked After Children (LAC)
and other workforce entrants are apprenticeship ready.

3.4.

2 LAC were employed into apprenticeship opportunities but are no longer on the
programme and 1 LAC has recently been appointed to an apprenticeship which
commenced in July 2020. There is further work necessary to improve opportunities
for those leaving care. Work is continuing with Children’s Services to identify
opportunities and support the development of traineeship programmes and preapprenticeship development opportunities.

3.5.

We now plan to extend our apprenticeships focus to include early career solutions,
including but not limited to graduates, and opportunities that the recently
announced Kickstart scheme presents. The Kickstart Scheme is a Department for
work and Pensions initiative that provides funding to employers to create job
placements for 16 to 24 year olds.

3.6.

It is encouraging that 80% of our staff (6,633 employees) have accessed and
completed learning on the Evolve learning management system. We now need
to focus on supporting the managers of the remaining 20% to access and record
their learning on the Evolve learning management system.

3.7.

Pertinent to leadership and management development we have delivered 4 out
of 6 management conferences this year (2 were cancelled due to the Covid 19
pandemic). These effectively engaged managers on central themes of culture
change and council plan and vision 2040. There are further manager conferences
planned for winter 2020, the delivery method and content is being considered.

3.8.

For performance appraisal targets we have attained 48.2% (of the March 2020
90% target). This target clearly requires work despite a slow but steady increase
month on month. We started the year with 10% and have increased by nearly 30%
in 12 months. The COVID 19 pandemic has had an impact affecting timely reviews
and reporting due to services being stood down and staff temporarily re-deployed
into other roles. We plan to review the council’s performance management process
and will provide plans to CMT as part of the workforce development strategy
refresh.

3.9.

A well-received Member led development programme included a safer and
stronger partnerships marketplace event, born in Bradford team learning inputs on
air quality, speech making and dementia workshops, virtual sessions to support the
roll out of Public i’s Connect Remote Platform and Members skills. Future events
include but are not limited to learning inputs on scams, virtual planning, domestic
abuse, and climate emergency. (These will be run virtually.)

3.10.

The Service Excellence Awards 2020 were deferred from March 2020 (as a result
of the Covid 19 pandemic) and will be delivered via a virtual awards ceremony on
15 October 2020. The awards feature two additional areas ‘Children at the heart of
what we do’ and ‘Innovation’. They have been supported by external sponsorship
with 4 times more funding than previous years – due to a comprehensive
sponsorship package. There were over 160 entries across all categories, which is
Page 3 of 37

Page 13

the highest entry rate in recent years, and entries have come from diverse
employee groups, and showcase our talent.
3.11.

During the Summer, (June - September, 2020) the Council Management Team
(CMT) facilitated a number of staff engagement sessions with different staff
groups from across the Council. These have brought many useful insights and
suggestions to our attention that as an organisation we can take to be more
inclusive and remove barriers. Building on our findings, we are launching Staff
Networks during National Inclusion Week, 28 September – 4 October 2020.

3.12.

The Council’s Organisational Development and Learning Workforce Development
Strategy 2015 – 2021 was based on the 2015 Hay Report, see ‘Workforce
Development Strategy’ (Appendix 1). Many but not all of the aspirations and
activities across the four phases for the 2015 – 2021 timeline have been achieved.

3.13.

Key activities that remain a focus for current work and future plans (across Phases
2 – 4 of the Workforce Development Strategy) include:





improving the performance management approach and compliance,
user friendly universal access to the Learning Management System,
effective talent management, including succession planning and career pathways,
and an update of role profiles, including, a shift from competency to skills
recruitment, and arguably more inclusive recruitment.

3.14.

The Future Leaders talent programme will conclude with the current cohort and a
refreshed talent programme will be designed with the aim to develop diverse Council
talent to progress into our senior roles (Special Grades and above, c top 200).

3.15.

We will put forward a business case for additional Human Resources resource
investment to focus on organisational learning and development and talent as part of
the Council’s annual budget setting process.

4.

Detailed Workforce Development Progress for 2019 – 2020

4.1.

Apprenticeships
The apprenticeship team aspired to establish a leading apprenticeship programme
aimed at providing a ‘leg up’ to the district’s young people, in order to provide rich and
rewarding careers and stimulate economic growth.
*Appendix 2 provides a full progress report and breakdown up to 18th August 2020 by age, department,
qualification level and cost.
Council to spend/ make the best use of apprenticeship levy funds


Levy funds are predominantly used to fund level 2 and 3 qualifications, including
statutory and mandatory training.



We have transferred/ gifted 5% of the levy to the Health and Social Care
Partnership (£150,000) and West Yorkshire Combined Authority (£70,000).
Page 4 of 37

Page 14

Apprenticeship targets
 The public sector target is that 2.3% of our employees are apprentices. Bradford
Council has up until 2021 to achieve the 2.3% per year.
Bradford Council Reporting Percentages
Percentage of apprenticeship starts between 1 April to
31 March (as a proportion of total headcount on 31
March)

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

0.80%

1.63%

1.58%

Bradford Council’s own target is 500 apprentices at any given time by March 2021.
This is already achieved through schools and council employees. To meet this target
for council only we need 113 apprenticeship starts by March 2021.



2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021

Total

Schools

Total

52
1
53

64
6
70

77
0
77

1
3
4

194
10
204

Total

32
47
79

49
110
159

33
97
130

0
19
19

114
273
387

132

229

207

23

591

New
Existing
Council
New
Existing
Council and School
Total



Targets for BAME - 30% of apprenticeships are BAME.
According to the council’s national apprenticeship data shows that there have
been 166 starts, 63 (38%) of these apprentices have been BAME.

All Apprentice Starts Ethnicity
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

 Targets for people with disabilities - 10% of apprenticeships have special
educational needs/ disabled.
According to the council’s national apprenticeship data shows that 16% of our
apprentices have declared a learning or other disability.
*There is a disparity in figures due to non - disclosure to the employer versus the learning provider/
government apprenticeship agency.
Page 5 of 37

Page 15

 Targets for children leaving care – 100% of LAC offered access to trainee/
apprenticeships.
All apprenticeship posts sent to leaving care team for Looked after Children (LAC).
We have continued to work with Children’s Service to identify inclusive recruitment
opportunities/ support development of traineeship programmes/ pre-apprenticeship
development opportunities.
2 LAC were employed into apprenticeship opportunities but are no longer on
programme.
1 LAC has recently been appointed to an apprenticeship started July 2020.
 Increase in the number of council employees under the age of 25 years
Most new apprentices are under age 30 (56%), with 46% under the age of 24 in the
Council and maintained schools.
Out of 160 apprenticeship starts, there were 54 apprentices who were under age 24 at
the start of their apprenticeship.
Ages of Apprentice starts by department
35
30
25

Chief Executive

20

Children's Services

Corporate Resources

15

Health and Wellbeing
10

Place

5

Total

0

4.2.

Talent Management
The outcome priority of Talent Management for 2019-2020 was to ensure that
employees have access to a range of development opportunities in order that talent
could be identified, nurtured and managed across the organisation.


Deliver the next Future Leaders class of 2019 -2020

For the 2019-20 programme we were joined by 4 colleagues from the VCS and
partners. The cohort consists of 71% female and 29% male and 39% BAME
participants.

Page 6 of 37

Page 16

Progression statistics for the Future Leader programmes since 2016 headlines:
 44.7% of all Future Leaders had some form of advancement after doing the course
 37.5% of BAME FLs in the cohort advanced v 50% of non-BAMEs
 A third of all FLs that didn’t advance at Bradford left for better jobs – no difference in
level between BAME/non-BAME
4.3.

Learning and Development
The outcome priority of Learning and Development (Evolve Learn) for 2019 - 2020
was to progress the automation of course administration and learning management
system functions and improve outcome metrics.
*Appendices 3 provides full coverage of course data

 Number of employees and external customers who utilise the Evolve,
learning management system (1st Oct 19- 24th Aug 20)

22,896

2,464

4.4.

Internal course
completions by 6,633
internal learners

80%

Of Internal employees
accessed & completed
learning

% of departmental completion of all learning

External course
completions:
 1,463 external
learners
 25 different orgs

Management, Leadership and Member Development
600 managers have been targeted with a mandatory development programme for
management tiers 1- 5 and open to all levels of managers and leaders in the Council.

Page 7 of 37

Page 17

 Continuation of the Council’s leadership development programme themed
around the Councils priorities for change for 2019 -2020
Managers Conference 2019- 20
In 2020 two rounds of Managers conferences were planned for the beginning and the
end of the year, providing places for 600+ managers across the council. Conference
themes included
Culture change and Vision 2040 and Council plan.
Round 1 – 6 x conferences were planned to run between February and March 2020. 4
of 6 sessions were delivered; two were cancelled due to the Covid 19 pandemic.
Round 2 – 6 x conferences were planned for between October and December 2020.
These are under review due to the Covid 19 pandemic restrictions.

25%

Round 1
25% of the
organisations
managers attended =
230 managers

Best Solutions for Managing People
An additional 2 x training sessions (3-day training course) ran for managers that had not
yet completed this mandatory training, 39 managers completed this learning. Due to
Covid 19 this course delivery is now subject to review.

Page 8 of 37

Page 18

Managers Evolve Performance sessions
32 face to face managers’ sessions delivered, with 191 managers attended.
Coaching Academy Champions
4 training workshops were delivered with 27 coaches supervised and supported.
Other key areas of progress:
Coaching Academy – continued providing support and network to enable our
managers to use coaching with staff that is based on improving performance, quality of
work and outcomes.
Leadership and Management Framework, to launch in Autumn 2020.
Section 1 – Leadership and management induction programme ‘Getting the basics
right’ including, Unconscious Bias.
Section 2- Leadership and management development programmes and CPD
Section 3 – Leadership and management progression and career development
4.5.

Councillor/ Member Development
The outcome priority of Councillor/ Member Development for 2019 - 2020 was to
develop a councillor led best practice Member Development programme.
*Appendix 4 contains the Member Development Programme Summary.

 Continue to support Member Development through a flexible range of
development opportunities.
Elected Members have had access to a range of development opportunities
over the past year, including (attendee numbers in brackets):
o Writing speeches scripts, delivered by Emma Taylor external consultant (4)
o Delivering a council chamber speech, delivered by Emma Taylor external consultant
(8)
o Bradford Air Quality event with Born in Bradford (12)
o Social media skills (8)
o Corporate parent training (20)
o Introduction to local government finance (10)
o Marketplace event for safer and stronger Communities (37)
o Virtual training/ coaching sessions for roll out of Public iplatform.
In addition to the above we have developed further resources for elected members on
the Evolve platform on dementia, LGA publications etc. topics.
4.6.

Performance Management
The outcome priority of Performance Management for 2019-2020 was to drive a
culture of high performance, where managers are managing poor performance and
recognising and rewarding good performance.
*Appendix 5 provides the performance Management data

 Increase in employees with a live goal on the performance system to 90% by
March 2020
Page 9 of 37

Page 19

Staff appraisal data is taken from the council’s Evolve learning management system.
Over the last financial year performance has improved in this area, use of the Evolve
system to record performance conversations has increased by 29% since April 2019 to
48.4% at the end of 2019/20.

%

90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
Oct-19

Nov-19

Dec-19

Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

Apr-20 May-20

Jun-20

Jul-20

Oct-19
40.7%

Nov-19
44.9%

Dec-19
46.3%

Jan-20
46.6%

Feb-20
48.1%

Mar-20
48.4%

Apr-20 May-20
48.3% 48.5%

Jun-20
48.6%

Jul-20
48.2%

Chief Executive (inc WYPF) 41.9%

45.9%

47.4%

50.0%

59.8%

64.7%

65.2%

64.4%

64.8%

67.7%

Childrens

31.2%

39.2%

41.6%

41.7%

36.3%

36.2%

36.8%

37.4%

37.4%

36.6%

Corporate Rescources

77.1%

76.9%

77.1%

76.1%

76.9%

74.2%

74.7%

75.0%

75.0%

73.8%

Health & Wellbeing

7.2%

18.6%

23.7%

25.3%

24.7%

26.6%

27.0%

26.7%

26.8%

26.3%

Place

31.2%

32.0%

32.7%

32.7%

34.9%

42.2%

41.8%

42.4%

42.3%

42.0%

Whole Organisation

 191 managers have received Evolve performance management system training. This
is through 32 face-to-face training sessions that cover understanding the
performance process, good practice in performance conversations and system use.
 329 staff completed online performance system training ‘an Introduction to Evolve
Performance’ module.
 Further help and support has been developed and updated in user guides, help
sheets and help and support
 Management teams can access information through the HR Dashboard on service
performance against this measure and track and discuss progress at monthly
Departmental Management Teams.
Performance, Discipline & Grievance Cases
Performance

Formal Cases @ 1 Sept 2020
Target 75% of formal cases
concluded within 140 days for
discipline and grievance cases

Chief Executive
Children's Services
Corporate Resources
Health & Wellbeing
Place
Council Total

Discipline

Grievance

Last 12 months
Previous 12 months
Last 12 months
Previous 12 months
Last 12 months
Previous 12 months
No. Cases
Ave
No. Cases
Ave
No. Cases
Ave
% Closed No. Cases
Ave
% Closed No. Cases
Ave
% Closed No. Cases
Ave
% Closed
Opened Duration Opened Duration Opened Duration on Target Opened Duration on Target Opened Duration on Target Opened Duration on Target

1
1
1
1
0
4

176
107
345
N/A
N/A
209

0
1
1
1
2
5

N/A
504
293
51
439
322

0
9
4
2
7
22

N/A
156
82
91
79
111

N/A
33.3%
100%
50.0%
100%
66.7%

0
17
17
11
24
69

N/A
232
145
297
124
181

N/A
41.7%
62.5%
9.1%
56.5%
46.8%

4
39
6
4
9
62

15
49
97
25
112
57

100%
88.0%
66.7%
100%
66.7%
84.9%

1
16
12
2
12
43

322
213
112
196
164
172

NB "Ave Duration" and "% Cases Closed" on Target does not include currently ongoing cases

Page 10 of 37

Page 20

0.0%
46.7%
66.7%
0.0%
50.0%
50.0%







The number of formal cases being opened generally has reduced significantly over
the last 6 months, the number of formal discipline cases in particular is significantly
reduced;
Closed formal average case durations are all reduced across performance,
discipline and grievance, when compared to the previous 12 months;
Performance against the target of 75% of formal cases concluded within 140 days
has significantly improved, having been met overall for grievance cases, and slightly
below target for discipline cases;
Corporate Resources and Department of Place are slightly below target for the
conclusion of grievance cases;
Children’s Services and Health & Wellbeing are below target for the conclusion of
disciplinary cases.

Further workforce information is available on the Workforce Dashboard and via the
Council website.
4.7.

Organisational Development
Culture
 Our staff will tell us that they can feel a positive shift in the culture of the
organisation.
From the completed resurvey of the organisations leadership culture as planned we
completed the interpretative results session delivered by the Pacific Institute with SLT
as an SLT development session. From the findings, although the index score has not
increased it was recognised by the Pacific Institute that considering the austerity and
reductions in the council this is still within good parameters for on-going culture
change and shift.

Page 11 of 37

Page 21

The culture resurvey and CMT/ SLT results form the interpretative session informed
culture activities for the Managers conferences. 4 X Managers conferences were
delivered to engage managers in culture and inclusion work leading on culture that is:
Collaborative, Innovative & Performance Orientated.
With the focus on
‘A culture with ‘Vision’, that is about ‘Engaging’ our staff and providing ‘Support’ in order
to ‘Transform’ our services and organisation’.
Staff engagement
The outcome priority of Staff Engagement for 2019 - 2020 was to support and
develop employees so that they have the skills, knowledge and confidence to deliver
our services well.
 Continue to deliver a revised annual Staff Engagement Plan
We have continued to engage with our employees through a range of engagement
activities and development activities. There has been a review of the staff engagement
plan and identification of key priorities for delivery in 2020.
Key areas are:
o

Delivered 2 x new Corporate Induction package that includes welcome briefing
event with Chief Executive and Councillors (121 attendees) Further sessions
were postponed as a result of the pandemic and from September onwards will
be delivered virtually.

o

The Service Excellence awards were postponed in March due to the pandemic
and will be run as a virtual event in October. The awards feature two additional
areas Children at the heart of what we do and Innovation. They have been
supported by Sponsorship with 4 times more funding than previous years – due
to a comprehensive sponsorship package. There were over 160 entries across
all categories.

o

The Long Service Awards were also postponed and will now take place in
November 2020 virtually.

o

Launched Facebook Health and Wellbeing group to support Colleagues Morale
and overall Wellbeing in light of the pandemic (c220 participants)
The Covid-19 Pandemic has resulted in both the Service excellence awards and Long Service
awards being postponed to October and November respectively and in a virtual format.

4.8.

Equality and Inclusion objectives


The outcome priority for 2019-2020 for E&I follows, minimum of 12 E&I
activities available to staff and members per year

Page 12 of 37

Page 22

Equality and Diversity training is set out below:
Corporate Mandatory Equality and Diversity E learning course, staff need to
complete at least once (repeated as and when required and when content updates
are made to the course). This course was rolled out to all employees in November
2019 and the Evolve report shows course completions at 2,586 at May 2020.
Available in accessible formats for those managers who have staff without access to
a computer.
Completions must be recorded on Evolve. If briefings are delivered using the
PowerPoint or PDF file, managers are asked to email a list of names to
evolve@bradford.gov.uk so completions can be recorded.
(i)

Mandatory Induction programme – face to face session for new employees that
covers meeting senior leaders and Cllr, this welcome briefing celebrates and
explores the diversity of the district and the communities we serve, covers
working within a Local Authority as an officer, Council / district plan. There is
also an E learning programme which covers an overview of working at the
council, services, Cllrs, departments and organisational structure.

(ii)

Bradford Behaviours training – introduction and exploration of the Bradford
Behaviours as part of commitment to develop high performance and low
tolerance of poor performance. Delivered as face to face workshops and E
learning, Training and toolkits for teams and individuals.

(iii) Management training – Management Conferences are run up to twice per year
and in 2020 the themes were: 2040 vision planning, which included a review
and celebration of the diversity of the district and achievements and the second
theme of Leading Culture Change, culture survey results and action planning.

(iv) Leadership and Management – Best Solutions mandatory management training
for all managers covering unconscious bias, coaching for performance,
recruitment and selection.
(v)

Leadership and Management – Future Leaders Inclusive Talent development
programme with modules including Leading with Equality and Project Work
modules on ‘2040 Vision’ consultations in the community and ‘Peoples Library’
celebrating the rich and diverse stories in the local communities.

(vi) The Leadership & Management programme has been stood down due to
Covid-19 and new offer to be launched in July which will includes new
‘Unconscious Bias’s e-learning offer, which will go out to managers and part of
the managers’ induction for all new managers.
(vii) Talent programmes have been scoped, planned and recommended and agreed
at JLT, and are emerging through the Inclusive Employers project. Plans
include Reverse Mentoring, Secondments and Immersive learning
programmes.
Page 13 of 37

Page 23

(viii) New survey on Culture is planned as part of the Bradford for Everyone
programme (Stronger Communities). This will then inform the development of
training that will be rolled out in Autumn on inclusivity and unconscious bias to
be available for all staff.
(ix) Developing plans as we progress; the workforce development strategy 2021
and beyond, priorities agreed with JLT and as we progress the Inclusive
Employers work which are informing detailed action plans.
The equality and diversity training was revised in 2019 to fully cover the Equality Act
and the Corporate Induction is revised on an on-going basis. There is additional
training available in services and departments that cover areas of E&D and inclusive
practice.
Please note, the % figure is only an estimate as it is not possible to calculate this 100% accurately,
this is due to the fluctuation of the numbers of staff and managers within the organisation at any one
time. It is based on June 2020 numbers of 8,237 staff and 875 managers.





4.9.

Apprenticeship programmes: 30% BME Please see section 2.6 or Appendix 2,
Section 3.
Apprenticeship programmes: 10% - Special educational needs/ disabled
Please see section 2.6 or Appendix 2, Section 6.
Apprenticeship programmes: 100% children leaving care Please see
section 2.6 or Appendix 2, Section 5.

Team Bradford
The objective for 2019-2020 was to support and encourage staff to look for
opportunities to work with organisations and businesses across the district to foster
shared ambition, in order to put citizens at the heart of what we do and to wrap
services around their needs.
 Work Programme 4 - Apprenticeship Programmes Development of a health and
care apprenticeship enrichment programme.
District wide Apprenticeship network
event held at Airedale hospital to bring together the partnership and Team Bradford
apprenticeship providers.
Bradford Careers Fair
Bradford district and Craven Health and Care Careers Fair held 4 March 2020. This
event was a Team Bradford event and hosted 500+ places offered to schools and
school leavers to introduce them to Health and Social Care sector and jobs across the
district.
Apprenticeship Levy gifting
We have worked with partners in Health and Social Care to advance apprentices in the
district. We have gifted £70k to improve career development for Health and Social Care
staff to complete apprentices at Levels 2, 3 and 5.
 Work programme 2 - Developing our Staff Together. Consistency of approach to
system leadership development.
Page 14 of 37

Page 24

 The secondment of the Head of Workforce Development Service to a two-year
post as Programme Director – Health, Economy and Skills continues until March
2021, aiming to further the integrated Health and Social Care transformation
delivery programme.
 System OD Network - HR membership of the Craven and District partnership
group to develop system wide change and transformation.
 District-wide Apprenticeship Network continues to be led by the council and
includes NHS, VCS, Bradford, Shipley colleges and private sector business.
 System Leadership Development – HR support the development and delivery in
the system leadership work stream, developing modules and induction for
system leadership across place.
 Communities of practice system leadership group – HR member of the district
wide leadership and management sub group that reports to the IWPB (Integrated
working party board).
 District Wide Health and wellbeing offer – New partnership with WY&H to respond to
Covid 19 pandemic with a suitable offer for Health and Wellbeing across place for all
Health and Social Care staff. Offer developed and launched and reviewing across
partners as we progress in the pandemic.

5.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
2020 – 2021 Workforce Development Priorities

5.1

Our ambition

5.1.1

Our aim is to create an environment where equality and inclusion is at the heart of
everything that every employee does. We will ensure that every talented, committed
and hard-working employee has the opportunity to rise to the top, whatever their
background and whoever they are.

5.1.2

We do not want services full of employees who think and sound alike. Therefore, we
must look beyond bias and seek out talent from all areas and backgrounds so that our
talented employees are valued irrespective of who they are and any visible or nonvisible differences in order to allow everyone to reach their full potential. We want to
see an open, inclusive environment where the best people, full of ideas and
enthusiasm, can thrive irrespective of who they are.

5.1.3

We will develop our workforce, support an encourage our employees to share their lived
experience through staff engagement sessions and periodic surveys. We will listen,
and act to remove barriers to success and create an environment and development that
supports our workforce to flourish.

Page 15 of 37

Page 25

5.1.4

We seek to foster a workforce culture that is inclusive, transparent and accountable,
and one in which there is zero tolerance for discriminatory behaviour, unconscious or
not.

5.1.5

Our ambition for 2020 – 2021 is to reinvigorate the Organisational Development and
Learning/ Workforce Development strategy and focus on ‘getting the basics right’.

5.2

Our Context

5.2.1

We have explored, considered and incorporated the views of our colleagues with
protected characteristics (through staff engagement), those that have Equality and
inclusion aspirations for the council (e.g. European Research Group), the relevant legal
context/ legislation (e.g. the Equalities Act, Public Sector Equality Duty) and previous
work in this regard/ desk research (e.g. the Workforce Development Strategy, Appendix
1, the Hay Report (on which the former was based), survey(s) findings (e.g. Culture,
Hay, Grant Thornton).

5.2.2

We will put forward a business case for additional Human Resources resource
investment to focus on organisational learning and development and talent as part of
the Council’s annual budget setting process.

5.2.3

The extent of the fulfilment of the business case will directly influence the delivery
timeframes. Put another way, we require resource and personnel to deliver our
ambitions. A business case will be delivered on or before the end of October 2020.
It should be noted moreover that the business case may take a month or two for
approval, recruitment may take a further month or two, design another circa two
months, before implementation. In brief, the more resource committed and the more
quickly approval is provided, the more likely it will be that we will be able to report
convincing improvement to general Organisational Development and Learning/
Workforce Development/ E&I targets by next October’s review.

5.3

Our Priorities and how we will measure success

5.3.1

We will organise our key actions across three key themes, namely: Talent Attraction,
Talent Development and Staff Engagement.
- Talent Attraction, e.g. recruitment and selection review/ branding, early careers
(e.g. apprenticeships, graduates, secondments etc.), on boarding, induction.
- Talent Development, e.g. Member Development, a revised Leadership
Development Programme (considering/ incorporating CE aspirations/ plans),
Management (Line Manager mandatory and E&I training), a reinvigorated Talent
Development Programme (with E&I ambitions), 5 days of learning and development
per employee, refresh of E&I training.
- Staff Engagement, e.g. continued engagement sessions, staff networks, staff survey
and E&I objectives.

Page 16 of 37

Page 26

5.3.2

Talent Attraction
The recruitment and selection review/ branding, on boarding, induction policies and
processes will be reviewed/ updated.

5.3.2.1

Early Careers – apprenticeships and graduates
The outcome priority for the apprenticeship team for 2020 – 2021 is to ensure that
national and organisational levy spend targets are met, provide a career stimulus
to the district’s young people and further council E&I aspirations, in order to
provide rich and rewarding careers and stimulate economic growth.

Performance Indicator
National apprentice
targets achieved.

How we will measure success
The 2020 – 2021 national target is 297, per current workforce figures.
March 2021, 500 council apprenticeships.

Council apprenticeship
targets achieved.

Plan, monitor and forecast apprenticeship levy spend to ensure no overspend and
minimise any payback.

Best use of levy fund.
Gift any underspend to district partners.

Use of apprenticeship
fund to further E&I
aspirations
Apprenticeship teams to
begin to focus, not only
on apprenticeships but
also other early careers
solutions.

An apprenticeship ‘dashboard’ will track progress to objectives.
30% of apprentices BAME
10% of apprentices special education needs/ disabled
100% of children leaving care offered access to traineeships and/ or apprenticeships. (Work
required with colleagues/ partners to ensure this target is achieved.)
There are currently 7 people with graduate in their job titles. We aim to increase this number.
We hope to make further use of the NGDP, for example.
NB: We have recruited one LGA NGDP graduate, who will begin in October 2020. The
recruitment cycle is annual and begins again in Spring 2021. In Spring, we are able to recruit
through either NGDP national or local. Local recruitment will help us fulfil our local targets.
Increase in the number of employees under 25.

5.3.3

Talent Development

5.3.3.1 Councillor/ Member Development
Performance Indicator
Review, benchmark best
practice and reinvigorate the
Member Development
programme/ learning and
development

How we will measure success
Programme quality, attendance and evaluation.

5.3.3.2 Management and Leadership Development
Leadership has a cogent influence on improving performance. Managers and Leaders
need mandatory development/ support, to ‘get the basics right’, personal development
support (e.g. awareness of self and impact on others), team development, technical
development etc.

Page 17 of 37

Page 27

Performance Indicator
Review, benchmark best
practice and reinvigorate
Leadership Development
programmes

How we will measure success
Programme quality, attendance and evaluation.

Review, benchmark best
practice and reinvigorate
Management Development
programmes

A leadership development programme is suggested to embed transformational
aspirations/ reinvigorated culture/ values/ Bradford behaviours, considering/
incorporating CE aspirations/ plans.
Programme quality, attendance and evaluation.
Employees to receive mandatory management support relevant to each organisational
management level.

5.3.3.3 Talent Management
The outcome priority of Talent Management for 2020 – 2021 is to discontinue the Future
Leaders programme and replace it with a talent programme that delivers the career
progression of identified talent, E&I/ diversity participants, in particular.
Performance Indicator
Review, benchmark best
practice and reinvigorate the
Talent Management
programme
The Future Leaders
programme is to be
discontinued

How we will measure success
Programme quality, attendance and evaluation.
Progress of participants, E&I/ diversity participants, in particular.
The perception of the programme is poor and the programme has purportedly not
achieved E&I aspirations. A complete redesign and relaunch is therefore necessary.

5.3.3.4 Learning and development
The outcome priority for learning and development for 2020 – 2021 will be a focus on
improving simplicity/ ease of use and service relevance. As above, we aim to provide 5
days of learning and development per employee.
Performance Indicator
Improved system easeof-use
Improved joined up
(across corporate and
services) online
mandatory (employee
and management)
learning and
development
Improved system
relevance to services

How we will measure success
Learning compliance
Mandatory learning compliance

Tailored learning packages per service

5.3.3.5 Performance Management
The outcome priority for Performance Management for 2020 – 2021 is to increase,
through a number of methodologies/ approaches, including online and face-to-face
learning performance management compliance/ the number of employees that
have agreed performance objectives with their line managers and are having
regular coaching conversations.
The delayed (from May 2020 due to the Covid 19 pandemic) council performance
management process is to begin from September 2020.

Page 18 of 37

Page 28

Performance Indicator
C90%
Performance Management
compliance across services

5.3.4

Staff engagement
The outcome priority of Staff Engagement for 2020 – 2021 is reconnect with employees
and seek input into future Organisational Development and Learning/ Workforce
Development plans.

Performance Indicator
Relaunch employee
engagement survey
Relaunch employee
engagement networks for
those with protected
characteristics

5.3.5

How we will measure success
Evolve data

How we will measure success
Report on findings by next year’s annual review.
Ensure that an employee network is set up per protected characteristic group, that these
are supported/ thrive.
Number of groups/ number of regular attendees.

Equality and Inclusion objectives
The outcome priority for equality and inclusion for 2020 – 2021 is to work proactively to
ensure that our workforce (at all levels) reflects the communities we serve and support
all staff to achieve their full potential.

Performance Indicator
Ensure that every
employee feels included,
are able to bring their
whole self to work and
that barriers to success
are removed. This will be
done through staff
engagement, review and
refresh of policies,
procedures and effecting
culture change.
Supporting every
employee to reach their
full potential through our
approach to learning and
development.
Achieve a workforce that
represents the
communities we serve
across all levels through
our approach to
recruitment and selection
and talent development.

Provide a central budget
to allocate resource to
support learning and
talent development.

How we will measure success
We will:
a.
Improve staff satisfaction results
b.
develop and implement a people (HR) policy review cycle and consult widely with
staff networks and trade unions.

We will:
a.
Provide 5 learning and development days per year per employee
b.
Increase percentage of diversity in Special Grades achieved through talent
development programme
c.
Increase completion and equalities awareness through mandatory equality and
diversity training.
We will:
a.
ensure diverse interview panels
b.
review job descriptions, adverts and selection practices that can act as a barrier to
some groups
c.
increase the representation of BAME employees at senior grades (special A and
above), with more reflective LGBTQ+, disability and ethnicity data, and to increase the
proportions of staff self-declaring.
d.
monitor and report our performance on recruitment and workforce diversity to
increase diversity through attraction, recruitment and selection processes.
We will put forward a business case for additional Human Resources resource investment to
focus on organisational learning and development and talent as part of the Council’s annual
budget setting process.

Page 19 of 37

Page 29

6.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
We will put forward a business case for additional Human Resources resource
investment to focus on organisational learning and development and talent as part
of the Council’s annual budget setting process.

7.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
No risk management and governance issues.

8.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
No legal issues.

9.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

9.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Consideration for forward plans in line with new equality objectives 2020-2024.

9.2

TRADE UNION
No matters arising on this report.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Members to note content of the report.

11.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Organisation and Workforce Development Strategy 2015 – 2021
Appendix 2: Apprenticeship Progress Report
Appendix 3: Evolve Learning and Development Progress Report
Appendix 4: Member Development Programme Summary
Appendix 5: Performance Management Progress Report

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Report of the Director of Human Resources to the meeting of Corporate Overview
and Scrutiny held on 10 October 2019.

Page 20 of 37

Page 30

Appendix 1

Phase 1 (2015-2017)

Phase 2 (2017-2019)

Phase 3 (2019-2021)

Phase 4 (2021 onwards)

DRAFT
Key activities:

Page 31

• Set future vision (Council
Plan)
• Set outline Workforce
Development Programme
• Set corporate Engagement
plan
• Refresh Bradford Behaviours
• Baseline staff survey
• Build systems capability
(Evolve)
• Create OD function

Key activities:
•

Launch Management development
Programme

•

Assign targets and measures to
Workforce Development Programme

•

Focus on Apprenticeships and
recruitment



Focus on performance, attendance and
wellbeing




Develop coaching style of management
Embed culture where innovation and
enthusiasm can thrive



Focus on organisation development

Key activities:
 Full roll out of ‘Evolve talent’
 Embed new approach to succession
planning and career pathways
 Supporting & enabling employees to

Key activities:
 Removal of traditional role
profiles
 On-going employee
development, including

take responsibility for their own

digital skills training and

growth and development

recruitment

 New approach to recruitment –

 Full roll out of new talent

recruitment for skills for

programme -

organisation not competencies for

apprenticeships, interns,

roles

secondees, graduates

with partners across the district

Talent management is about doing the right things today, so that we have the right people with the right skills, behaviour and attitude for tomorrow

Page 21 of 37

Appendix 2prenticeships

Apprenticeship Update – August 2020
Section 1 – Use of Apprenticeship Funds
Most apprenticeship qualifications are at Level 2 and 3.

Level of Apprenticeship
600
500
400
300
200
100
0
2

3

4

5
Council

Schools

6

7

Total

Total

Levy Transfer Committed
Bradford Council has committed to transfer the levy for the following: Transfer of Levy Qualification
Partner Organisation
Cost PP
10 x Management
(Operations/Depart Mgr) WYCA Partnership
7,000.00
5 x Nursing Associates
NHS (IWPB Partnership) 15,000.00
25 x Adult Care Workers NHS (IWPB Partnership) 3,000.00

Duration

Cost Per
Cost for
Cost for
Cost for
Month Cost Per Year 2020 - Year 2021- Year 2022PP
Month
2021
2022
2023

Total

30 months

233.33 2,333.30 27,999.60 27,999.60 14,000.80 70,000.00

24 months

625.00 3,125.00 37,500.00 37,500.00

0.00 75,000.00

12 months

250.00 6,250.00 75,000.00

0.00 75,000.00

0.00

From April 2019, 25% of the levy per financial year can be transferred. These funds will also
expire from the 2-year period of the levy going into the DAS account.
£ 133,000 of levy funds have now been allocated and learners are on the apprenticeships. Due to
Covid 19 some of the above committed transfers have been put on hold until further notice.

Section 2 - Active Apprenticeships and 2.3% Public Sector Target
Bradford Council Public Sector Target

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

Percentage of apprenticeship starts (both new hires
and existing employees who started an apprenticeship)
between 1 April to 31 March as a proportion of total
headcount on 31 March

0.80%

1.63%

1.58%

Page 32

There are currently 230 active/live apprenticeships on programme being funded from Bradford
Council’s Apprenticeship Levy:
Council
Apprentices
Existing Staff

Council
Apprentices New
Starters

Apprentices in
Contributing
Schools

Total

116

44

70

230

Active
Apprenticeships

2) Financial Years Apprenticeship starts split by Council and Schools: 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021

Total

Schools

Total

52
1
53

64
6
70

77
0
77

1
3
4

194
10
204

Total

32
47
79

49
110
159

33
97
130

0
19
19

114
273
387

132

229

207

23

591

New
Existing
Council
New
Existing
Council and School
Total

Section 3 – 30% Apprenticeships – BAME
The following tables show break down on Ethnicity for Apprenticeship starts.

All Apprentice Starts Ethnicity
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

Page 23 of 37

Page 33

School Ethnicity
250
200
150
100
50
0

Council Ethnicity
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

Equality Target Progress – Live Apprentices on programme 18th August 2020
Target - 30% Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) – Table below is data from Council where
information has been disclosed/not disclosed on live apprentices.
Council – 116
Council – 44
Up-skill
Total 230
New
Schools - 70
Existing
Apprentice
Apprentice
Apprentice
Apprentice
Starts
Starts
Ethnicity
Starts
Starts
16 (23%)
16 (36%)
23 (20%)
55 (24%)
BAME
21 (30%)
23 (52%)
81 (70%)
125 (54%)
English
33
(47%)
5
(12%)
12
(10%)
50 (22%)
Not Stated/No Information

Page 24 of 37

Page 34

Table below shows BAME from National Apprenticeship Data over the Financial Years: All
Starts
126
224

Financial Year
2017 - 2018
2018 - 2019
2019 – 2020

166

BAME
45
56
63

BAME %
36%
25%
38%

Section 4 – Increase the number of employees under the Age of 25
School Starts by Age on start of Apprenticeship from May 2017 to August 2020

250
200
150
100
50
0
16-18

19-24

25-30

31-40

41-50

51-60

60+

Total

Council Starts by Age at start of Apprenticeship by Financial Year
2017 – 2018
Existing Staff

New Staff
35
30
25

Chief Executive

20

Children's Services

15

Corporate Resources

Health and Wellbeing
10

5

Place
Total

0

Page 25 of 37

Page 35

2018 – 2019
Existing Staff

New Staff
50
45

40
35

Chief Executive

30

Children's Services

25

Corporate Resources

20

Health and Wellbeing

15

Place

10

Total

5
0

2019 – 2020
Existing Staff

New Staff

100
Existing
Staff

35

90

30

80
70

Chief Executive

25

Chief Executive

60

Children's Services

20

Children's Services

50

Corporate Resources

40

Corporate Resources

15

Health and Wellbeing

30

Place

20

Place

5

Total

10

Health and Wellbeing
10

0

Total

0

2020 – 2021
Existing Staff

New Staff

20
18
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
16 – 18 19-24 25-30 31-40 41-50 51-60

60+

Total

1
0.9
0.8
0.7
0.6
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1
0
16 – 18 19-24 25-30 31-40 41-50 51-60

Chief Executive

Children's Services

Corporate Resources

Health and Wellbeing

Place

Total

Chief Executive

Children's Services

Corporate Resources

Health and Wellbeing

Place

Total

Overall Total

Page 36

60+

Page 26 of 37

Total

Section 5 – 100% Children Leaving Care (Looked After Children)
Target - 100% opportunities for Looked After Children where they would have access to
traineeships and apprenticeships. All apprenticeships opportunities are offered to LAC in the
first instance but not always ready to undertake an apprenticeship. 1 LAC started on
apprenticeship July 2020.

Section 6 - 10% People with Special Education Needs or Disabilities
Please note, there is no Council data on disability regarding apprentices as this information
has not been disclosed on SAP. Data from the national apprenticeship service can give
numbers of those apprentices who have a Learning Disability (LLDD) only. Please see table below
with numbers: All
Starts

Financial Year
2017 – 2018
2018 - 2019
2019 – 2020
(2020 – 2021 not yet available from ESFA)

126
224
166

LLDD
8
27
27

LLDD %
6%
12%
16%

Page 27 of 37

Page 37

Appendix 3
Appendix 3.1

Workforce Development – Learning Data - internal staff
WEF 1st October 2019 to 24th August 2020
Type of learning completed

Organisational general data

22,89
6

No. of course completions,
by 6,633 internal learners

% of departmental
completion of all learning

80%

% of the organisation
accessed and completed
learning

Classroom based learning

Corporate training data
Please note: All classroom based delivery training was suspended from 16th March due to the COVID 19
Pandemic, therefore all statics for this type of learning are only from 1st October 2019 to 15th March
2020.

Managers Conferences – Feb 2020 to Mar 2020 – 4
sessions held

25%

% of the organisations
managers attended

Page 28and
of 37
Performance Management training, 32 sessions took place, to discuss process
system
Between 1st October 2019 & 15th March 2020
Page 38

No of managers per dept who
attended

% of managers, per dept who
attended

Best Solutions for Managers, 2 training sessions took place
Between 1st October 2019 & 30th October 2019
No of managers attended

Corporate Induction workshops, 2 training sessions took place, for all new starters
Between 1st October 2019 & 31st January 2020

1

3

Page 29 of 37

Page 39

First Aid – Suite of 7 different modules, 29 training sessions took place
Between 1st October 2019 & 16th March 2020

273

Total no. of attendees

Online Learning
Welcome New Starter eLearning module
Completions between 1st Oct 2019 & 24th Aug 2020
No. of learners
completed, split by
dept

98

31%

Total no. of
completions

% of all new starters
completed the induction
eLearning module

Introduction to Performance eLearning module
Completions between 1st Oct 2019 & 24th Aug 2020

Page 30 of 37

Page 40

Health & Safety eLearning modules – suite of 10 different learning modules around Health &
Safety in the workplace.
Completions between 1st October & 24th August
No. of completions,
split by dept

1630

873

Total no. of course
completions

Total no. of learners
completed H&S
modules

Equality & Diversity eLearning – pushed out to all staff from 4th November 2019 and new
starters within 7 days of start date
Completions between 4th November & 24th August

2656

32%

Total no. of course
completions

% of organisation who
has completed

Protecting Information eLearning – Certification,
for annual renewal and pushed out to all staff from 8th May 2017 and new starters within 7 days of start
date. Compliance below between 1st October & 24th August

67%

Of the organisation are
certified

Page 31 of 37

Page 41

26%

Of the organisation are
overdue of time limit set

Appendix 3.2

Workforce Development – Learning Data – external customers
WEF 1st October 2019 to 24th August 2020

Type of learning
completed

2,46
4

No. of course completions,
by 1,463 external learners

Organisations & course
completions

Page 32 of 37

Page 42

Appendix 3.3

Workforce Development – Learning Data
How have we reacted to the COVID 19 Pandemic

Supported Emergency Relief Care Worker Programme – Partnership Work



Designed a package of 15 online learning activities and resources – 38 no of learners have accessed
Provided online access to 89 certificates to candidates attending face to face training – external
partners
 Worked with other organisations to gain access to specific online training and resources
Safeguarding Adults eLearning


Made Safeguarding Adults Level 1 & Level 2 eLearning available to internal and external partners
from 1st April 2020
 Continue to regularly report 108 completions, 230 registrations so far from internal staff and
external partners.
Bite sized Covid 19 Learning


Worked with software providers to receive time limited access to 18 online bite sized learning
programmes, to support staff and managers with Covid specific, health & wellbeing and managing
remotely.
 711 course completions
Return to work eLearning


Created bespoke, in house, online learning package to support those who are returning to the
office, to relay safety measures in place and support the transition of return
 620 no of completions so far.
 Increased on online offer, contracted with an online learning provider for access to a suite of
eLearning, with the ability to make bespoke and adapt to our needs.
Supporting Customers


Continued to support departments, services, managers and team members throughout the
pandemic, access learning and manage performance.
 1260 average emails received per month
 6633 internal customers actively using the system
 1463 external customers actively using the system
WebEx & Virtual sessions




Supported the use of online learning webinars, by integrating Evolve and WebEx.
9 virtual sessions taken place
11 future sessions booked

Page 33 of 37

Page 43

Appendix 4
Taking Member Development Forward in 2020/21
This part of the report summarises the next steps forward for Member Development in
2020. Building on the themes progressed in 2019 this report highlights how the Member
Development Programme will address the following aspects in 2019/20


Is Member – led at all times, building on their strengths, Community insights and
leadership roles including working with the Councillor champions.



Support Members in taking learning back into their communities and helping them
signpost their constituents to key local services



Support the District and Council priorities – keeping the programme focussed on
people’ s lives and district outcomes.



Support Members learning and development in bite sized time periods via Virtual
platforms including Connect Remote. Wherever possible presentations and handouts will be emailed through to participants in advance of the course.

Background
The Covid – 19 pandemic required a shift in support to Members in helping them adapt to
remote methods of working e.g. Public i - Connect Remote. A number of sessions were
organised across the committees supplemented by a number of one to one coaching
sessions.
The majority of programmes will continue to be delivered on a cross party basis with the
option for group parties to request their own bespoke versions.
The Commissioning of programmes continues to be party led with the party whips
reviewing each programme and highlighting their group requirements.
Picking up the momentum in the autumn after the disruption caused by the pandemic the
Member Development Programme in 2020/21 will:


Provide continuity of Learning by again linking programmes and modules through
the year e.g. In October we will be launching a bi- monthly series of modules for
Members on Mental Health and we will continue our focus on supporting Members
with the latest developments on dementia



The Member development manager will continue to work with Member champions
to promote each development programme.



We will open up more programmes for colleagues and partners to provide valuable
shared learning.



A varied programme fully maximising the potential of Evolve – currently placing
national resources on climate change and important Covid resources.

Page 34 of 37

Page 44

Programme themes will include:
Safeguarding Adult and Children
With the significant increase of domestic abuse in the pandemic a training session has
been scheduled in for Members in October to support Members awareness, signpost to
community support and resources. This programme will include one of our
Realsafeguardingstories films.
Our Realsafeguardingstories now has a YouTube Channel in addition to the website.
There are now over 30 films that are available for Members to use and the project picked
up its 3rd major award – Sovereign Health Care for its work on Hate Crime.
The films encompass Children’s through to Adults and Domestic abuse stories.
Working with Trading standards we are providing two sessions on Scams, in September,
that are impacting on our communities. The first session will include Covid19 related,
medical and Phishing scams. The second one will feature Doorstep crime, sextortion and
money muling.
Foundation Modules
These will include the Member Induction Programme in 2021, Speech delivery in a virtual
format provided by Emma Taylor, Personal safety of Councillors – working with the
personal safety App that is available to all Members.
Supporting Member’s Advocacy Skills as a community Leader will be scheduled in the
New year. This programme will help Members understand their role as an advocate in
different contexts e.g. in supporting constituents when they are dealing Council
applications and services. This session will help Members develop a clear understanding
of models of advocacy, managing expectations, Boundaries and action planning.
We will also schedule in a further programme, building on last year’s well received
programme, on finance in local government. This will include an explanation of jargon, an
understanding why Council’s spend money, how the money is managed and the roles of
Councillors in local government finance.
Health and Social Care
Continuing the learning undertaken in 2019 we will schedule 3 programmes on dementia
for 2020/21. The first one will be supported by the Alzheimer’s society which will have a
focus on Covid19 and the implications for the people in our communities. The Second one
scheduled for November will focus on the challenges for Carers.
A series of Mental Health Programmes to support Member’s knowledge will commence in
October 2020 and will run on a bi- monthly basis. These will feature a virtual
marketplace/signposting event in November which will support Members in helping their
constituents particularly in stressful situations.
We will also run another programme to support Members and their knowledge of Motor
Neurone Disease in the new year. This will include including hearing the story of one of
the volunteers and more knowledge of the condition, where to signpost and the major
challenges for their carers.
Virtual Planning Tour – New programme
This scheduled programme will be an opportunity for Members to discuss with our
Planning team their FAQs re Planning and highways issues. We will use photographs and
short film clips on the Connect Remote Platform. On this session specifically we will focus
in in on Cycle Lanes, changes to Government funding and dangerous junctions.
This will be an opportunity for Members to discuss with our Planning team their FAQs re
Planning and highways issues. We will use photographs and short film clips on the
Connect Remote Platform.
Page 35 of 37

Page 45

Emergency Climate Change and Carbon Literacy Introductory sessions (November)
Bradford declared a climate emergency in January 2019. A sustainable development plan
was approved by executive in March 2020. This introductory session will highlight the
latest activity and what is being developed in partnership with West Yorkshire Combined
Authority.
Also, as part of the drive to eliminate harmful greenhouse gases and the impact on our
climate we are scheduling in a session on Carbon literacy. This will introduce a number of
key ideas and will consider how we can be more effective in our carbon management in a
personal, Council and district capacity.
Upcoming Member Programmes 2020/2021
September
Money SOS Covid19 Financial Wellbeing Training (also run in November)
Scams and Frauds Workshops for Members
October
Virtual Planning tour of the district
Dementia Workshop
Mental Health Programme for Members
Domestic Abuse – A workshop for Members
November
Climate emergency –an introduction
Carbon Literacy
December
Finance for Members
January
Advocacy Skills
Personal Safety and Members

Page 36 of 37

Page 46

Appendix 5

Workforce Development – Performance Data
WEF 1st October 2019 to 31st July 2020

Organisational general data
% of staff with an assigned goal

%

90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
Oct-19

Nov-19

Dec-19

Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

Apr-20 May-20

Jun-20

Jul-20

Oct-19
40.7%

Nov-19
44.9%

Dec-19
46.3%

Jan-20
46.6%

Feb-20
48.1%

Mar-20
48.4%

Apr-20 May-20
48.3% 48.5%

Jun-20
48.6%

Jul-20
48.2%

Chief Executive (inc WYPF) 41.9%

45.9%

47.4%

50.0%

59.8%

64.7%

65.2%

64.4%

64.8%

67.7%

Childrens

31.2%

39.2%

41.6%

41.7%

36.3%

36.2%

36.8%

37.4%

37.4%

36.6%

Corporate Rescources

77.1%

76.9%

77.1%

76.1%

76.9%

74.2%

74.7%

75.0%

75.0%

73.8%

Health & Wellbeing

7.2%

18.6%

23.7%

25.3%

24.7%

26.6%

27.0%

26.7%

26.8%

26.3%

Place

31.2%

32.0%

32.7%

32.7%

34.9%

42.2%

41.8%

42.4%

42.3%

42.0%

Whole Organisation

90.0%
80.0%
70.0%

%

60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
Oct-19

Nov-19

Dec-19

Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

Apr-20

May-20

Jun-20

Jul-20

Whole Organisation

Oct-19
50.5%

Nov-19
56.3%

Dec-19
58%

Jan-20
60.5%

Feb-20
62.0%

Mar-20
62.9%

Apr-20
63.1%

May-20
64.1%

Jun-20
64.6%

Jul-20
64.2%

Chief Executive (inc WYPF)

66.7%

66.7%

71%

70.8%

78.0%

83.7%

83.7%

83.7%

81.6%

84.0%

Childrens

48.9%

58.7%

63%

65.6%

68.6%

68.8%

66.8%

68.3%

70.2%

68.0%

Corporate Rescources

82.1%

83.0%

84%

84.0%

83.6%

83.3%

83.6%

85.4%

85.4%

84.9%

Health & Wellbeing

24.7%

38.8%

42%

46.2%

47.4%

47.4%

50.3%

51.0%

49.0%

49.7%

Place

37.8%

40.3%

41%

42.9%

44.3%

45.1%

46.0%

46.0%

47.7%

48.5%

Page 37 of 37

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7/

Report of the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee
to the meeting of to be held on Thursday 22 October
2020.

L
Subject:
Managing Attendance Scrutiny Review.

Summary statement:
The attached draft report contains the findings from the Managing Attendance
Scrutiny Review.

Cllr Nazam Azam
Chair – Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Mustansir Butt

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Phone: (01274) 432574
E-mail: mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk

Corporate

Corporate
Safer & Stronger Communities

Page 49

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

The attached draft report contains the findings from the Managing Attendance
Scrutiny Review.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to undertake an in-depth
Scrutiny Review, into Managing Attendance across Bradford Council.

2.2

This issue came to the surface when members of the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee considered the Mid Year Finance and Performance Statement.
This resulted in extensive discussions relating to managing attendance across the
District.

2.3

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee members began their deliberations
conducting informal information gathering sessions with Bradford Council officers
who are responsible for managing attendance of staff, Trade Union representatives,
Bradford Council’s Human Resources officers and HR Plus Advisory officers.

2.4

The DRAFT Scrutiny Review report, is attached as Appendix 1.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

During the informal information gathering sessions, it became clear that there were
a number of key recurring issues that have arisen during this scrutiny review have
centred around:





4.

Long Term Sickness Absence;
Advice from HRplus;
Sickness absence cases relating to Mental Health;
Training.
FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
There were none arsing from this Scrutiny Review.

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
There were none arsing from this Scrutiny Review.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
There were none arsing from this Scrutiny Review.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Page 50

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
There were none arsing from this Scrutiny Review.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
There were none arsing from this Scrutiny Review.

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
There were none arising from this Scrutiny Review.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
There were none arising from the Scrutiny Review.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There were none arising from this Scrutiny Review.

7.5

TRADE UNION
Trade Unions were engaged with as part of this Scrutiny Review.

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
There were none arising from this Scrutiny Review.

7.8

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
There were none arising from this Scrutiny Review.

7.9

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
There were none arising from this Scrutiny Review.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

9.

OPTIONS
In considering how to progress this issue the Committee may wish to:



adopt or amend the findings contained within the draft report;
forward their recommendations to the Executive, Council and / or other appropriate
bodies.

Page 51

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee adopts the findings
Contained within the draft Managing Attendance Scrutiny Review Report.

11.

APPENDICES


Appendix 1 – Managing attendance report

Page 52

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
2005 Managing Attendance Review Report.

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

DRAFT Managing Attendance Scrutiny
Review
Thursday 22 October 2020

Email: scrutiny@bradford.gov.uk
Twitter: Bfd_Scrutiny

1

Page 55

Membership of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Members
Cllr Nazam Azam, (Chair)
Cllr Kamran Hussain, (Deputy Chair)
Cllr David Green
Cllr Rosie Watson
Cllr Angela Tait
Cllr Mohammed Shafiq
Cllr John Bibby
Cllr Owen Goodall
Cllr Naveed Riaz
Cllr Alun Griffiths
Alternate Members
Cllr Sameena Akhtar
Cllr Richard Dunbar
Cllr Tariq Hussain
Cllr Sarfraz Nazir
Cllr Carol Thirkhill
Cllr Taj Salam
Cllr Mike Pollard
Cllr Val Townend
Cllr Paul Sullivan
Cllr Geoff Reid
Contact for Enquiries
Mustansir Butt
Overview and Scrutiny Lead
E-mail – mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk
Tel (01274) 432574

2

Page 56

Contents

Chair’s Foreword

4

Executive Summary

5

Chapter 1: Introduction

6

Chapter 2: Progress against the 2005 Managing Attendance
Improvement Review Recommendations

9

Chapter 3: Key Findings

12

Chapter 4: Concluding Remarks

16

Chapter 5: Summary of Scrutiny Review Recommendations

17





Appendix 1: Terms of Reference.
Appendix 2: Information evidence-gathering participants.
Appendix 3: Recent developments to address sickness absence

3

Page 57

Chairs Foreword

This report has been produced by the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in
response to the recommendation made by this Committee on Wednesday 22 November
2017, to undertake an in-depth Scrutiny Review, into Managing Attendance across
Bradford Council.
The recommendations contained within the report come under the key lines of enquiry for
the review, as contained in the Terms of Reference, (attached as appendix 1).
An Improvement Staff attendance review was undertaken in 2005 and progress against
the 2005 review recommendations is contained within the report.
However, there has been a rise in sickness absence across the council, particularly
relating to long term sickness and sickness absence relating to mental health. This has
resulted in Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee members, agreeing to undertake
this scrutiny review.
As you will see from the recommendations, a range of approaches will be required to
assist in managing attendance across Bradford Council.
I would like to thank fellow councillors of the committee and council officers for taking part
in this scrutiny review.

Cllr Nazam Azam
Chair, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

4

Page 58

Executive Summary
This scrutiny review follows on from the recommendation made by Corporate Overview
and Scrutiny Committee on Wednesday 22 November 2017, to undertake an in-depth
Scrutiny Review, into Managing Attendance across Bradford Council.
The three information gathering sessions undertaken as part of this scrutiny review
focused on the nine key areas for improvement, in accordance with the Terms of
Reference, adopted at the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on Thursday 22
March 2018. Specifically, the committee resolved to:
1. Examine progress made against the 2005 Managing Attendance Improvement
review recommendations;
2. Review the Councils current policies and procedures in dealing with sickness
absence, in order to assess the effectiveness of the management of sickness
absence within the Council;
3. Identify best practice and innovative approaches in the Council and from other
organisations both in the public and private sector in managing staff attendance;
4. Establish a consistent approach to establishing “baseline” costs for calculating the
cost of sickness absence across the Council;
5. Examine the causes of staff absence, including the reasons given for absence,
trends, issues and key factors;
6. Consider Human Resources role, including the role of Occupational Health and HR
Plus in managing attendance;
7. Review Manager’s roles and responsibilities in managing attendance;
8. Analyse the impact that staff absence has on service delivery and to the Council.

As a result of the review, this Committee has made a number of recommendations for
consideration. These are contained (a) within the body of the report and (b) summarised
at the end for ease of reference.

5

Page 59

Chapter 1 - Introduction
At its meeting on Wednesday 22 November 2017, the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee agreed to undertake an in-depth Scrutiny Review, into Managing Attendance
across Bradford Council.
This issue came to the surface when members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee considered the Mid Year Finance and Performance Statement. This resulted
in extensive discussions relating to managing attendance across the District.
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee members began their deliberations on
Thursday 22 November 2018, with the session focusing on Bradford Council officers who
are responsible for managing attendance of staff. At the information gathering sessions on
Thursday 24 January 2019 and Thursday 19 February 2019 members met with Trade
Union representatives and Bradford Council’s Human Resources officers and HR Plus
Advisory officers.
Key Aims and Scrutiny Process
The key aims of this stage in the scrutiny review are as outlined on the previous page.
Members have received and gathered a range of information from a number of different
sources, including:




relevant documents;
relevant data;
written submissions from, or meetings with, interested parties.

Local Context
Written submissions from Bradford Council’s Human Resources Department has set-out
the local context, in relation to sickness absence within Bradford Council.
Table 1 – Long term sickness absence trends for the last five years
Average FTE Days
Lost Per employee
Council Total
(excluding schools)
Council Total
(including schools)

30
June
2020
12.60

31
March
2020
12.96

31
March
2019
13.00

31 March
2018

31 March
2017

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

12.57

11.85

11.70

11.72

10.68

11.17

11.09

10.94

10.50

9.90

10.34

6

Page 60

Table 2 – Short term sickness absence trends for the last five years
Current
Short Term/Long
Term Sickness
Council Total
(excluding schools)
Council Total
(including schools)

Short
Term/Long
Term
Sickness
Council
Total
(excluding
schools)
Council
Total
(including
schools)

30 June
2020
Short
Long
28%

72%

29%

71%

31 March
2020
Short Long

31 March
2019
Short Long

31 March
2018
Short Long

31 March
2017
Short Long

31 March
2016
Short Long

31 March
2015
Short Long

26%

74%

27%

73%

31%

69%

32%

68%

33%

67%

34%

66%

30%

70%

32%

68%

35%

65%

36%

64%

33%

67%

37%

63%

Long term sickness makes up over two thirds of sickness absence so the effective
management of this type of sickness will have a much more significant impact on absence
rates. The figures indicate that, in the past, this has not been managed as effectively. As
the percentage of long term sickness went up, so did the overall absence figure. The most
recent figures show a reduction in overall sickness absence and a reduction in the
percentage of long term sickness.
Table 3 – Top causes of sickness absence
Top 5 Sickness Absence
reasons

June
2020

Fractures/Sprain/Muscular
Cold/Flu/Viral
Stress non work related
Depression/Anxiety
Stress work related
Gastric
Other reason

14.94%
8.79%
14.30%
13.84%
11.52%
3.00%
N/A

31
March
2020
15.56%
11.17%
11.33%
9.34%
10.3%
6.34%
N/A

31 March
2019

31 March
2018

31 March
2018

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

15.42%
11.03%
10.50%
9.20%
8.94%
6.24%
N/A

15.66%
13.10%
11.24%
9.35%
7.20%
6.09%
N/A

16.82%
11.33%
9.65%
8.58%
6.70%
7.32%
N/A

14.77%
10.45%
7.24%
8.50%
6.70%
7.13%
7.53%

14.69%
11.43%
6.78%
8.75%
6.67%
8.02%
7.34%

NB Cold/flu/viral includes Covid-19, which accounts for 4.67%

7

Page 61

Graph 1 – Local Authority sickness absence comparison 2018-19, (including schools)

According to CIPD (Chartered Institute of People Management) in the latest ‘Health and
Well-Being at Work Report’ (March 2020, published by the CIPD and Simply Health), the
average rate of employee absence is 5.8 days per employee or 2.6% of working time lost.
For public services the average working days lost per employee per year is 8.2, for private
sector service industries this is 5.1 working days lost per employee, for private sector
manufacturing and production industries this is 7.1 working days lost per employee, and
for the not for profit sector 5.8 working days are lost per employee.
The Office for National Statistics states that sickness rates have remained static in recent
years and that in 2018, on average, 4.4 days are lost to sickness or injury per worker.

Cost of sickness absence to Bradford Council
During the information gathering sessions for this scrutiny review, Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee members discussed the cost of sickness absence to Bradford Council,
in particular the use of agency staff to cover for sickness absence.
Additional information supplied by Bradford Councils Human Resources team indicated
that from October 2019 to September 2020, the total spend on Agency cover that has
been attributable to sickness absence cover, was just over £597k.

8

Page 62

Chapter 2 - Progress against the 2005 Managing Attendance
Improvement Review Recommendations
Set out below are the recommendations from the 2005 improvement review to Managing
Attendance, together with the progress against each recommendation.
Recommendation
The Chief Executive should ensure that there is a
Top Management Champion Assistant Chief
Executive, Policy & Corporate Support) who has
overall responsibility for the cultural change required
through performance management in helping to
reduce the sickness absence levels in the Council
by;
 promoting a culture for staff attendance and
the management of sickness absence
 re-enforcing key issues about sickness
absence management and attendance
linking to the Vision and Values work being
undertaken by the Council.
 ensuring that Senior Management put in
place appropriate performance managing
frameworks to ensure managers are held
accountable for the management of sickness
absence (e.g. through monitoring
performance on the management of
sickness absence at Departmental
Management Teams on a regular basis).
The Assistant Chief Executive to work with the
Director of Human Resources to ensure that reports
on measures undertaken by Departments to reduce
sickness levels and the outcome of these measures
within the Council are regularly report on an annual
basis to the Corporate Improvement Committee and
the Improvement and Innovation Board.

Progress
An action plan was produced and progress against
these actions has been reported to Corporate
Overview & Scrutiny.

Over the years structures and roles have changed
but the Director of Human Resources has always
had overall responsibility this type of role supported
by other senior roles in HR. New performance
indicators for sickness management were agreed by
CMT and implemented in September 2018 and
formed part of the overall approach to absence and
wider performance management.
A performance target for sickness absence rates has
been set annually and introduced as a Well Run
Council measure and a report, as detailed, taken to
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Other
reports have also been taken on sickness as
requested by the Committee.
Benchmarking information regarding quartiles of
performance is no longer available. Little
Benchmarking is now available since the Best Value
PIs are no longer a requirement for Local
Government.

In order to drive improvements in the levels of
sickness absence in Bradford Council, a corporate
target for reducing sickness absence should be
agreed by the Director of Human Resources and
Policy and Performance Director, which should also
be reported as part of the Councils Corporate Plan
under the priority of improving customer services.
This target should be challenging yet realistic and by
2007/2008, the Council should be out of the bottom
quartile for metropolitan authorities. The corporate
target should be supported by departmental, service
and team targets which should be included in their
respective plans.
Ensure that the cost for sickness absence to the
authority is accurately established, the Council
should develop a system in relation to recording the
exact cost in relation to recruiting someone from a
recruitment agency to cover for sickness absence as
well as recording where overtime payments are
attributable to sickness absence. This should be
implemented by June 2006 and include;
 the cost of recruiting agency staff to cover for
sickness by department;
 the Council to determine the amount of
payments directly attributable to cover for

The cost of sickness and agency cover for sickness
absence are monitored on an on-going basis.

9

Page 63

Recommendation
sickness absence. Once a total cost is
established, (baseline), the Assistant Chief
Executive (Policy and Corporate Support)
should consider establishing targets with
departments to reduce the amount of spend
on agency staff, while maintaining the same
level of service for 2007/08.
In understanding how the Council will deal with
sickness absence the Director of Human Resources
should;
 monitoring and report the use of the
Council’s procedures for dealing with
sickness absence, and ensure that they are
being used consistently interpreted and
applied;
 providing guidance and support through
appraisal for sickness absence
management;
 identifying a specific ‘HR Champion’ at
senior level to co-ordinate the expertise in
Human Resources, especially in dealing with
long-term absence cases, particularly to;
 providing general advice and guidance to
managers on sickness absence, particularly
on conducting return to work interviews and
managing long term sickness;
 providing a strategic approach to
disseminating good practice in relation to
sickness absence;
 identifying hotspots where sickness absence
levels are high and encourage managers
and supervisors to tackle these by providing
additional support;
 monitoring Departmental sickness levels and
compliance by managers and supervisors
with sickness absence procedures;
 having a more strategic role which looks
specifically at longer term solutions for
managing sickness absence and to then
feed them into Bradford Councils workforce
planning systems;
 conducting a review to evaluate the role of
Champion will be undertaken after 12
months.
To ensure that training for sickness absence
management is tailored to the needs of managers
and supervisors, Human Resources should
specifically ensure that the programme meets the
needs of individual departments on an ongoing
basis.
To support the improvement in the approach to staff
absences identified in this report and to address long
term sickness absence, The Director of Human
resources should undertake a structured audit of all
current long term sickness cases. This should be
reported to individual departments September 2006
who should develop actions to address these cases
which should be reflected in the departments
sickness targets contained within Departmental

Progress

HRplus provide Management Information on
compliance with sickness procedures and there is an
escalation process via the line manager chain for
cases where the manager’s do not progress cases in
line with policy and targets. MI is fed back to DMTs.
This now forms part of the new PIs for managers.
The previous appraisal process has been replaced.
Guidance and support is provided by HRplus.
An Human Resources Champion has always been in
pace. Sick absence management advice to
managers and escalation continues to be undertaken
by HRplus and the Human Resource Service.
Targeted training has been developed (Best
Solutions for Manager), additional performance
metrics implemented. Absence data is discussed at
monthly Service DMTs.

HRplus provides coaching support to all managers
on managing sickness. The recent and on-going
Best Solutions for Managers training also provides
managers with the tools they need to effectively
manage absence and also coaching managers to act
promptly through supportive, and difficult
conversations.
LTS MI is provided by HRplus. These cases are
examined jointly by HRplus, the HR Business
Partnering Service and Employee Health and
Wellbeing in conjunction with the manager to
implement the most effective actions.

10

Page 64

Recommendation

Progress

In improving management information, a vital
component in Managing Attendance, the Director of
Finance needs to ensure that in its negotiations with
its ICT contractor, in particular relating to the SAP
that regard is given to manager and supervisors
information needs that would assist them in
managing sickness absence. This should in
particular cover;
 maintaining reliable records on sickness
absence, including patterns of sickness
absence, the reasons for sickness absence
and the number of days present;
 strategic directors and senior management
being able to identify trends in sickness
absence in their service areas;
 current pay status of those employees who
are off sick;
 giving managers early reminders as to when
specific trigger points have been met.
The Performance Improvement Group to specify a
project with Occupational Health to undertake a
consultancy project relating to process mapping of
how individual cases of sickness absence are
referred and dealt with by Occupational Health. The
consultancy project should be completed by
September 2007.
In order to make an informed decision about the
application of family friendly policies on improving
staff attendance, there should be a review of familyfriendly policies.

A suite of reports is available to managers on
sickness absence accessed through MSS.
Managers are sent email reminders whenever an
employee breaches a trigger point prompting them to
raise an HRplus case, and follow up contact and
escalations process is in place. Corporate sickness
MI continues to be provided.

Strategic Plans.

Employee Health and Wellbeing continue to provide
an efficient and effective service.
Mental Health absence is an immediate referral to
employee health and wellbeing.

There is now legislation providing rights for
employees to request flexible working. Shared
Parental Leave etc are in place.
Flexible ways of working have also been introduced
by the Council which allow managers and staff to
agree ways of working that reflect a positive work life
balance. Different contract types e.g. part time, term
time and also access to different paid and unpaid
leave arrangements are in place.

11

Page 65

Chapter 3 – Key Findings
This section presents the findings of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee into
Managing Attendance, covering the agreed key lines of enquiry for this Scrutiny Review.
The key recurring issues that have arisen during this scrutiny review have centred around:





Long Term Sickness Absence;
Advice from HRplus;
Sickness absence cases relating to Mental Health;
Training.

Long Term Sickness Absence
Officers from Bradford Council who are responsible for managing attendance, informed
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny members that the process for managing long term
sickness absence could be improved. Examples were given whereby the Sickness
Absence Management Procedure indicates that when an employee if off sick, they cannot
be contacted for four weeks. Subsequently, officers who are responsible for Managing
Attendance felt that this was hindering them in addressing long term sickness absence
cases.
There was unanimous agreement amongst members and officers that the more contact
that takes place with employees who are off sick, the more likely they are to return to work
quickly. Keeping employees informed of developments at work and having those
supportive conversations with employees to make their progression back to work more
quicker, along with offering reasonable work related adjustments; were considered to be
paramount in employees returning to work more quickly.
Recommendation 1
That amendment’s be made to Bradford Council’s Sickness Absence Management
Procedure, specifically relating to promoting earlier conversations and dialogue
between manager and employee, with a view to a quicker return to work.

Continuing on, Bradford Council officers informed Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
councillors that employees were obtaining a sick note from the doctor, with different
conditions attached to them, including that an employee cannot be contacted for four
weeks, particularly if an employee is off with stress.
Members also heard that the doctors are only really given the employees version of the
case and it would be helpful for officers who are responsible managing attendance to also
be able to have some dialogue at this stage, particularly as reasonable adjustments could
be offered to an employee to get that back to work quicker, which the doctor would not be
aware of.
Furthermore, there was consensus amongst all participants that it is very difficult to deal
with long term sickness absence cases. It was felt that the Managing Attendance Policy is
there, but as officers dealt with such a variety of sickness absence cases that often did not
fit in with the Policy and more multi-faceted approach was required.
12

Page 66

Recommendation 2
That officers from Human Resources and the Health and Wellbeing Board raise with
the Clinical Commissioning Groups and explore opportunities to overcome barriers
presented with ‘no contact’ statements on GP Fit Notes in order to progress
support, occupational health referral and adjustments and facilitate an employee
returning to work early. That officers review and strengthen the supporting
attendance policy on communicating with employees who are absent due to illness
or injury.

One of the recommendations from the 2005 Managing Attendance Improvement Review
recommended that Departmental Attendance Champions be appointed.
The Departmental Attendance Champions used to meet on a monthly basis and then later
on a three monthly basis and discussed a range of managing attendance related themes,
some of which included improving the management of sickness absence, supporting staff
and sharing and implementing best practice across Bradford Council.
However, Bradford Council officers informed Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
members, that this group did not meet any more.
Officers also informed Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee members, that as a
result of the work undertaken by the Departmental Attendance Champions, there were
reductions in sickness absence across the Council.
However, members were informed by Bradford Council officers responsible for managing
attendance, that there was a direct correlation between the cessation of the Departmental
Attendance Management Champions group and improvements in managing attendance
across the Council.

Recommendation 3
That the Director of Human Resources reinstates the Department Attendance
Champions group, to be chaired by the Director of Human Resources.

Advice from HRPlus
During the information gathering session with Bradford Council officers who are
responsible for Managing Attendance, members heard that they officers were receiving
different and conflicting advice from HR Plus advisors, in relation to Managing Attendance
cases.
Different and conflicting advice often resulted in Bradford Council officers not being able to
effectively address sickness absence cases and officers were then subsequently, seeking
advice from Bradford Councils Human Resources Team, as well as HR Plus advisors. It
was felt that this was hindering officers as it put doubt in the minds of officers who are
dealing with sickness absence cases and making difficult decisions about individuals.
13

Page 67

There was also discussion centred around the issue that HRPlus were originally designed
to deal with the day to day Human Resources issues, leaving the more complex and
difficult cases to be addressed by Bradford Council Human Resources team.
Therefore, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny members felt that if HRPlus were now dealing
with the more complex cases and not the routine day to day cases, then this appeared to
be a change of policy and not what HRPlus were originally designed to do.
Recommendation 4
That officers in Bradford Council’s Human Resources develop a more consistent
and streamlined approach to providing and guidance to Bradford Council officers,
who are responsible for managing attendance.

Sickness absence cases relating to Mental Health
Continuing on, Trade Union representatives stated that there had been an increase in
mental health related sickness absence from 29% in 2012, to 77% in 2018. Despite the
fact that Bradford Council has signed up to a “Time to Change”, this is a part of Bradford
Council’s health and wellbeing commitment to work to reduce the mental health stigma
and tackle mental health in the workplace. There has still be a significant rise in sickness
absence cases relating to mental health.
Information provided by Bradford Council’s Human Resources Department, identified that
the average length of absence as a result of stress and mental health related conditions,
was 30 days for 2018-19.
Furthermore, members also heard that Bradford Council’s employee wellbeing service is
good at addressing medical conditions that require a medical diagnosis, such as broken
bones. However, the Council is not so good at dealing with sickness absence cases
relating to mental health.
It was felt by participants, that Bradford Councils Managing Attendance Policy is a
standard response to an illness and does not particularly deal with mental health issues
very well.
Members were unanimous in that they felt the Councils Managing Attendance Policy did
not actually need to be amended, but enacted.
Recommendation 5
That Bradford Council’s Human Resources officers develop and implement
approaches, to ensure that the Council’s Managing Attendance Policy is being
followed consistently, by those officers who have a responsibility for Managing
Attendance.

14

Page 68

Training
During the information gathering session for this scrutiny review, members were informed
that 50% of Bradford Council officers who have a responsibility for managing attendance,
had been provided training on managing attendance.
Participants stressed the issue that there appeared to be a lack of confidence by Bradford
Council officers in dealing with managing attendance cases, particularly mental health
sickness absence cases. Members were informed that such cases were not being tackled
proactively at an early stage, hence resulting in such cases becoming complex and difficult
to manage.
There was consensus amongst Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee members,
that Bradford Council officers who have a responsibility for managing attendance, should
be supported in providing them with the confidence and tools, which would give them the
autonomy to successfully deal with such cases.

Recommendation 6
Mandatory learning and development support should be provided to all Bradford
Council officers who have a responsibility for managing attendance.

15

Page 69

Chapter 4 – Concluding Remarks

Throughout the course of this scrutiny review, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee members heard that the biggest challenge to managing sickness absence, is
long term sickness absence levels, as well as a lack of clarity within the managing
attendance policy and the ability to interpret the policy in several different ways.
Managing attendance is a multifaceted issue and it appears that there is no single
approach that will deliver improvements in how Bradford Council manages attendance. In
order to effectively address managing attendance, this scrutiny review has highlighted that
a range of approaches will need to adopted.
This Committee has sought to take a balanced approach in its deliberations relating to this
Scrutiny review and aimed to ensure that this report encompasses the views and concerns
of all interested parties.
The scrutiny review report identifies a number of recommendations. If implemented, these
will further improve the approach that Bradford Council has in terms of managing
attendance across the Council.
Bradford Council’s Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, will monitor future
progress against these scrutiny review recommendations.

Recommendation 7
Bradford Council’s Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to receive a report
back in 12 months, which monitors the progress against all the recommendations
contained within this scrutiny review.

16

Page 70

Chapter 5 – Summary of Scrutiny Review Recommendations
Recommendation 1
That amendment’s be made to Bradford Council’s Managing Attendance Policy,
specifically relating to promoting earlier conversations and dialogue between manager and
employee, with a view to a quicker return to work.
Recommendation 2
That officers from Human Resources and the Health and Wellbeing Board raise with the
Clinical Commissioning Groups and explore opportunities to overcome barriers presented
with ‘no contact’ statements on GP Fit Notes in order to progress support, occupational
health referral and adjustments and facilitate an employee returning to work early. That
officers review and strengthen the supporting attendance policy on communicating with
employees who are absent due to illness or injury.
Recommendation 3
That the Director of Human Resources reinstates the Department Attendance Champions
group, to be chaired by the Director of Human Resources.
Recommendation 4
That officers in Bradford Council’s Human Resources develop a more consistent and
streamlined approach to providing and guidance to Bradford Council officers, who are
responsible for managing attendance.
Recommendation 5
That Bradford Council’s Human Resources officers develop and implement approaches, to
ensure that the Council’s Managing Attendance Policy is being followed consistently, by
those officers who have a responsibility for Managing Attendance.

Recommendation 6
Mandatory learning and development support should be provided to all Bradford Council
officers who have a responsibility for managing attendance.
Recommendation 7
Bradford Council’s Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to receive a report back in
12 months, which monitors the progress against all the recommendations contained within
this scrutiny review.

17

Page 71

Appendix 1
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council
Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Scrutiny Review into Managing Attendance across Bradford Council
Terms of Reference
See Part 3E paragraphs 2.1 to 2.11 of the Constitution of the Council.
Background
At its meeting on Wednesday 22 November 2017, the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee agreed to undertake an in-depth Scrutiny Review, into Managing Attendance
across Bradford Council.
This issue came to the surface when members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee considered the Mid Year Finance and Performance Statement. This resulted
in extensive discussions relating to managing attendance across the District.
Context
Set-out below are the short term and long term sickness absence trends from 2014/15 to
December 2017/18.
Year

Target (excl schools)

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18 (to
Dec)

10 days
10
10
10

Outturn (excl
schools)
11.3 days
11.3
11.3
12

Year

Short Term (excl
schools)
37.5%
33.4%
32.1%
31.3%

Long Term (excl
schools)
62.5%
66.6%
67.9%
68.7%

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18 (to
Dec)

Key Lines of Enquiry
The key lines of enquiry for this scrutiny review are to:


Examine progress made against the 2005 Managing Attendance Improvement
review recommendations;

18

Page 72



Review the Councils current policies and procedures in dealing with sickness
absence, in order to assess the effectiveness of the management of sickness
absence within the Council;



Identify best practice and innovative approaches in the Council and from other
organisations both in the public and private sector in managing staff attendance;



Establish a consistent approach to establishing “baseline” costs for calculating the
cost of sickness absence across the Council;



Examine the causes of staff absence, including the reasons given for absence,
trends, issues and key factors;



Consider Human Resources role, including the role of Occupational Health and HR
Plus in managing attendance;



Review Manager’s roles and responsibilities in managing attendance;



Analyse the impact that staff absence has on service delivery and to the Council.

Methodology
The committee will receive and consider a variety of evidence/information provided by a
range of interested parties. The Committee may adopt one or more of the following
methods to collect evidence/information:





relevant documents;
relevant data;
written submissions from, or meetings with interested parties;
undertake relevant visits.

Indicative list of interested parties
An indicative list of interested parties is provided below. This is not definitive or exclusive
and can be developed as the scrutiny progresses.
Organisation / Department

Bradford Council.

Contact
Joanne Hyde – Strategic Director, Corporate
Services.
Anne Lloyd – Director of Human Resources.
Simon Jenkins – Human Resources.
Caroline Booth – Employee Health and Well
Being.
Strategic Directors.
Council Staff.
Procurement

19

Page 73

Organisation / Department

Contact
Linda Crowther - Unison.
Gary Nesbitt - GMB.
Patrick Kerry - Unite.
Cllr Susan Hinchcliffe.
Sarah Greene.

Trade Unions.
Councillors.
HRPlus.

Indicative Timetable
Date

Milestone

Thursday 22 March
2018.
Thursday 22
November 2018.
Thursday 24 January
2019.
Tuesday 19 February
2019.

DRAFT Terms of Reference to be presented to the Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny Committee – for discussion and approval.
Information gathering session – Bradford Council officers
responsible for Managing Attendance.

TBC.

Information gathering session – Trade Unions representatives.
Information gathering session – Bradford Council HR and HR
Plus.
DRAFT Review Report and Recommendations to Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny Committee – for discussion and approval.

20

Page 74

Appendix 2
Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Review - Participants

First evidence-gathering session, City Hall, Bradford, Thursday 22 November 2018














Cllr Sue Duffy, (Deputy Chair, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Rosie Watson, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr David Green, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Richard Dunbar, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Phil Hays, (Bradford Council, ICT).
Martin Stubbs, (Bradford Council, Revenues and Benefits).
Jenny Cryer, (Bradford Council, Children’s Services).
Tracey Cellian, (Bradford Council, Home Care).
Angela Greenhough, (Bradford Council, Home Care).
Pat Cole, (Bradford Council, Community Services).
Najum Saleem, (Bradford Council, Health and Well Being).
Louise Williams, (Bradford Council, Neighbourhood Services).
Geoff Binnington, (Bradford Council, Fleet and Transport Services).

Second evidence-gathering session, City Hall, Bradford, Thursday 24 January 2019







Cllr Nazam Azam, (Chair, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Sue Duffy, (Deputy Chair, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Rosie Watson, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Cath Bacon, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Patrick Kerry, (Bradford Council, UNITE).
Rob Murgatroyd, (Bradford Council, GMB).

Third evidence-gathering session, City Hall, Bradford, Tuesday 19 February 2019











Cllr Nazam Azam, (Chair, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Sue Duffy, (Deputy Chair, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Kamran Hussain, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr David Green, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Richard Dunbar, (Corporate Overview and Scrutiny).
Cllr Shakeela Lal.
Anne Lloyd, (Bradford Council, Human Resources).
Michelle Moverley, (Bradford Council, Human Resources).
Janet Twinn, (HR Advisor Plus).
Sophie Hupfield, (HR Advisor Plus).

21

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3
RECENT DEVELOPMENT TO ADDRESS SICKNESS ABSENCE
The information gathering session for Bradford Council Officers was held on 22 November
2018. Since then, a number of initiatives and changes have been put in place aimed at
reducing sickness absence levels.
The extensive existing wellbeing offer to staff has been expanded and adapted in response
to the Covid pandemic. The offer now includes:
•

A Comprehensive Staff Wellbeing Guide on Bradnet
This includes a wide range of advice and support to help with staff’s personal
wellbeing, and to help them support colleagues, team members, friends and family.
Topics include coping with feeling overwhelmed, exercise and eating well, dealing with
isolation, difficult situations at home, mental wellbeing and coping with bereavement.

•

Your Wellbeing Matters Facebook group
This is a relaxed and friendly space to help staff connect and have positive interactions
during the coronavirus outbreak. Staff can use the group in any way that supports their
own and others' wellbeing, whether to seek or offer support, or simply chat and share
with colleagues from the wider council team.

•

Employee Coronavirus Helpline
A dedicated employee helpline is in place to give staff support and advice around how
coronavirus is affecting staff at work. Support provided may include giving access to
practical assistance or financial advice, through to details of specialist bereavement
and psychological support.

•

Fast tracked counselling for emotional support
The Council’s counselling provider can arrange counselling for a staff member who are
struggling within 48 hours of a request being received at Employee Health and
Wellbeing. Up to 8 sessions of counselling can be arranged, and this can be via
telephone, video, or face to face dependant on the specific needs of the member of
staff.

•

Shout - A Crisis Text Service
This is an innovative service accessed by text message which helps staff who prefer to
use text rather than speak out loud to talk about what is worrying them. The service is
free and confidential and it offers support to anyone who is struggling with their mental
health.
1

Page 77

•

SUDDEN – A service for coping with bereavement
Their website provides support for anyone bereaved by sudden death, and their
helpline offers emotional and practical support.

•

Mental Health Awareness Week
This promotional week was run from 18th to 22nd May and provided wellbeing
information to all employees. The Wellbeing survey was launched along with a number
of “bite size” learning resources. A Kindness matters video (provided by the Mental
Health Foundation) was popular as was the Coronavirus Your Wellbeing Matters page
on Bradnet which contains links to numerous resources to support staff wellbeing.

•

Staff Wellbeing Survey
The wellbeing survey was designed to assess the levels of staff wellbeing and whether
the wellbeing messages and initiatives were reaching all staff. In total, 1,667 people
took part in the survey which is considered a good response rate in comparison to
other similar surveys. The spread of the returns across the organisation was
reasonably representative. The results of the survey were generally positive with 80
per cent of staff answering OK, Good or Very Good to the question "How would you
rate your mental wellbeing right now?". However, the following areas were identified as
the most significant in causing concern to staff:
o
o

o

Effective, supportive and regular contact from immediate and senior managers.
Flexible working practices to be maintained including understanding of personal
circumstances. BME staff in particular wanted to continue working from home
and not to be “forced” back.
Effective provision of IT to enable working remotely.

The outcomes of the survey are part of a report to be considered with proposals to
address these areas.
•

Management Training
Around 50 workshops have been provided to managers to help them to develop their
management skills in better managing their staff including absence management.
These interactive, 3 day workshops have been attended by over 500 managers. 11 of
these workshops took place after the information gather session for Council staff on 22
November 2018.

2

Page 78

•

Network of Wellbeing Support
A network of Employee Wellbeing Champions has been established across the Council
which has been effective in disseminating wellbeing information to staff and acting as a
point of contact to signpost staff to appropriate resource.

•

In-house HR Advisory
o

Following the decision by Executive to bring this service back in house, work has
begun on the pulling together of a project group to lead the implementation of this.
Work on this project will start at pace very shortly, with clear workstreams outlined
and subsequent leads appointed. Workstreams will run simultaneously, with
regular meetings to ensure progress and highlighted milestones are met.

o

As part of this process, one of the project groups workstreams will involve
analysis of how the management of sickness absence within the organisation can
be improved and streamlined to ensure a more robust approach, in an effort to
seek improved sickness absence levels, through improved management and
oversight.

o

HR colleagues will play a key role in this, through the development of refined
policies (in consultation with key stakeholders within the organisation) in relation
to sickness absence, providing a more ‘hands on’ approach in providing advice to
managers in service areas and also monitoring the implementation of the revised
policies through regular updates and case conferences with management to
ensure a timely, efficient and consistent approach to sickness management within
the organisation. HR will work with senior management within the organisation to
ensure management compliance and consistency of policy adoption.

o

New systems will be introduced to not only allow the accurate recording of
sickness absence and highlighting of relevant trigger points reached by staff
members, but will also provide valuable management information that can be
used by HR colleagues to work with services to ensure a consistent approach and
service specific approaches to the managing of staff absence.

o

The new systems and processes, will allow clear and productive links between all
relevant areas within HR, that are involved in supporting both staff and
management, including HR advisory services, employee health and wellbeing and
occupational safety, as well as our external partners.

3

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8/

Report of the Chair of the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to be held on Thursday 22 October
2020

M
Subject:
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Work Programme 2020/21

Summary statement:
This report includes the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee work
programme for 2020/21.

Cllr Nazam Azam
Chair – Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Mustansir Butt
Overview and Scrutiny Lead
Phone: (01274) 432574
E-mail: mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Corporate
Community Safety

Corporate

Page 81

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

This report includes the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee work
programme for 2020/21, which is attached as appendix 1 to this report.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council constitution requires all Overview and Scrutiny Committees to produce
a work programme.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the responsibility for “the
strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the corporate
priority about customer services and e-government, that improve the Councils
ability to deliver, govern and change, community cohesion and all other corporate
matters not falling within the responsibility of any other Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.” (Council Constitution, Part 2, 6.2.1).

3.2

The remit of this Committee also includes:




the co-ordination of the discharge of the Overview and Scrutiny role within
the Council and in relation to external bodies;
supporting the Executive through its contribution towards the improvement of
the Council’s performance;
co-ordinating the development of the Overview and Scrutiny role within the
Council.

3.3

Best practice published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny suggests that “work
programming should be a continuous process”. It is important to review work
programmes, so that important or urgent issues that arise during the year are able
to be scrutinised. Furthermore, at a time of limited resources, it should also be
possible to remove areas of work which have become less relevant or timely. For
this reason, it is proposed that the Committee’s work programme be regularly
reviewed by members of the committee throughout the municipal year.

3.4

The work programme as agreed by the Committee will form the basis for the
Committee’s work during the year, but will be amended as issues arise during the
year.

3.5

As agreed by members of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, this
Committee will be undertaking detailed Scrutiny Reviews this Municipal Year,
relating to Fireworks, Hate Crime and Domestic Violence.

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

None.

Page 82

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

None.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.2

None.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Community Cohesion and Equalities related issues are part of the work remit for
this Committee.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None.

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
None.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
A key priority of work for this Committee related to the Overview and Scrutiny of the
strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the priority of
Safer and Stronger Communities.
As well as this, the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is also the
authority’s Crime and Disorder Committee under the provisions of Section 19 of the
Police and Justice Act 2006.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
None.

7.6

TRADE UNION
None.

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Work of this Overview and Scrutiny Committee has ward implications, but this
depends on that nature of the topic.

Page 83

7.8

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
None.

7.9

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
None.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

9.

OPTIONS

9.1

The Committee may choose to add to or amend the topics included in the 2020-21
work programme for the committee.

9.2

Members may wish to consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that it may wish to
conduct.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That members consider and comment on the areas of work included in the work
programme.

10.2

That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that they may wish to
conduct.

11.

APPENDICES
Appendix One – 2020-21 Work Programme for the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.
Appendix Two – Unscheduled Topics.

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Council Constitution.
2019-20 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme.

Page 84

Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny
Corporate O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda

Description

Thursday, 9th July 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Report deadline 29/06/2020.
1) COVID19 issues relating to the areas of
Overvall co-ordination and response to
work under the remit of this Committee.
COVID19 and the govenrnace
arrangements.

2) Resolution Tracking.

3) Draft 2020-21 Corporate Overview &

Page 85

Scrutiny Work Programme.

Monitoring the progress made against
the recommendation of Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Disucssion and agreement over the
Draft 2020-21 Corporate Overview &
Scrutiny Committee work programme.

Thursday, 23rd July 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 02/07/2020. Report deadline 09/07/2020.
1) Call-In.
Impower.
2) 2019-20 Annual Performance Outturn.

3) Finance Position Statement for 2019-20.
4) First Quarter Financial Position Statement.
5) Work Planning.

7th October 2020

There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

Report
Joanne Hyde/Stev
Hartley/Chris
Chapman/Bev
Maybury/Sarah
Muckle/Ian Day/Anne
Lloyd.
Mustansir Butt.

Comments

From th cancelled meeting on Thursday
9 April 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Joanne Hyde/Chris
Chapman.
David Wamlsley/Phil
Witcherley/Laura
Copley/Jenny Cryer.
Chris Chapman/Andrew
Cross.
Chris Chapman/Andrew
Cross.
Mustansir Butt.

Page 1 of 5

Corporate O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda

Description

Thursday, 24th September 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 03/09/2020. Report deadline 10/09/2020.
1) £2m Personal Protective Equipment
Procurement Contract.
2) Equality Objectives.
The final progress on the Equaloty
objectives (2016-2020) be presented in
September 2020. Also that the Draft
Equality Objectives be presented to this
Committee, prior to them being
considered by the Executive.
3) Work Planning.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

Page 86

Wednesday, 14th October 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
1) Domestic Violence Scrutiny Review.
Revisiting the Terms of Reference.
Thursday, 22nd October 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 01/10/2020. Report deadline 08/10/2020.
1) £2m procurment contract - New Coroners
Court Accomodation.
2) Bradford Council Workforce Development

Strategy 2015-2021.
3) Draft Managing Attendance Scrutiny Review

Report.
4) Work Programme.

Focusing spcifically on key outcomes
and performance appraisals.
Key findings and recommednations
from the Scrutiny Review.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

Thursday, 12th November 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
1) Hate Crime Scrutiny Review.
Informal information gathering session
with the LGBTQ+ community.
7th October 2020

Report

Comments

Michele Macarten/Ian
Westlake.
Helen Johnston/Philip
Witcherley.

Constitutional requirement.
Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Mustansir Butt.

Imran Khan/Ben
Middleton/Christophe
Hamard.
Ann Lloyd.

Mustansir Butt.

Constitutional requirement.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 10 October 2020.
From the cancelled meeting on
Thursday 9 April 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Mustansir Butt.

Cancelled from March 2020, due to
COVID19.
Page 2 of 5

Corporate O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda

Description

Thursday, 19th November 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 15/10/2020. Report deadline 05/11/2020.
1) Second Quarter Financial Position Statement.
2) Draft Procurement Strategy.
3) Stronger Communities Strategy.

4) Safer Communities Plan Performance.

Page 87

5) Work Planning.

Progress against the Stronger
Communities Strategy Delivery Plan be
presnted in 12 months, specifically
focusing on the outcomes and
evaluation of projects being delivered
as part of the programme.
Performance related report against the
Delivery Plan to be presented in 12
months. Quarterly performance data to
be electronically circulated to members.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

Thursday, 3rd December 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 11/11/2020. Report deadline 19/11/2020.
1) This Committee requests that a further report
To be considered at a meeting in
be presented to in three
December 2020.
months which specifically focuses on the
key outcomes delivered from
the Impower Contract.
2) Work Planning.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.
Thursday, 7th January 2021 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 17/12/2020. Report deadline 22/12/2020.
1) Business Rates.
2) Council Tax.
7th October 2020

Report
Chris Chapman/Andrew
Cross.
Ian Westlake.
Ian Day/Mahmood
Mohammed.

Ian Day/Michael Churley.

Comments

From th cancelled meeting on Thursday
9 April 2020.
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Parveen Akhtar/Chris
Chapman.

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 July 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Martin Stubbs.
Martin Stubbs.
Page 3 of 5

Corporate O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda

Description

Page 88

Thursday, 7th January 2021 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 17/12/2020. Report deadline 22/12/2020.
3) Bradford District Anti-Poverty Co-ordination
A more focused report in 12 months
Group.
relating to how peoples lives are being
improved through the work of the AntiPoverty Coordinating groups.
4) Period and Hygiene Poverty.
Report to be presented to this
Committee whoch includes more
detailed information relating to service
needs and responses regarding period
poverty locally. Officers abe asked to
work with current providers across
the District to better understand the im
5) Industrial Services Group.
Further progress in 12 months, to also
inlclude the purchases of Council
assets to support ISG.
6) Work Planning.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.
Thursday, 18th March 2021 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 25/02/2021. Report deadline 04/03/2021.
1) Implementtion of Universal Credit across the
Implementation of Universal Credit
District.
across the District, to also include the
support being provided to vulnerable
groups.
2) The Covenant.
Further report on the work undertaken
in line with the Council resolution be
presented in 12 months. The findings
of the Armed Forces Covenant be
presneted to this Committee within six
months.

7th October 2020

Report

Comments

Helen Johnston.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 16 January 2020.

Sarah Possingham.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation
fromThursday 6 February 2020.

Ben Middleton/Peter
Keeley.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 16 January 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Martin Stubbs.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 12 March 2020.

Helen Johnston.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Page 4 of 5

Corporate O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda

Description

Page 89

Thursday, 18th March 2021 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 25/02/2021. Report deadline 04/03/2021.
3) Prevent Programme for th District.
The independent review of the national
Prevent Programme be presented to
this Committee in September 2020, as
soon as it is available after its
publication.
The outomes against
the projects being delivered as part of
the Prevent Strategy for the
4) People Can.
Detailed report specifically focusing on
the added value of the People Can
Programme across the District.
5) Work Planning.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

7th October 2020

Report

Comments

Ian Day.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 12 March 2020.

Mahmood Mohammed/Ian Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Day.
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 12 March 2020.
Mustansir Butt.

Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny
Scrutiny Committees Forward Plan
Unscheduled Items
Corporate O&S Committee
Agenda item

Page 91

Author

Comments

1 Verbal update from Bradford
Councils representative on the
West Yorkshire Police and
Crime Panel.

Cllr Richard
Dunbar/Cllr Tariq
Hussain/Cllr Russell
Brown.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 13
September 2018.

2 Draft Digital Strategy.

Parveen Akhtar.

Request from Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee members.

3 Draft IT Strategy.

Dominic BarnesBrowne/Keith Hayes.

Request fromCorporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee members.

Susan
Betteridge/Joanne
Hyde.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 11 April
2019.

Mustansir Butt.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
recommendation from Thirsday 18 December
2018.

4 West Yorkshire Combined
Services.

Item description

Report to focus on the viability of Bradford Council using West Yorkshire Joint Services
as an internal provider. The findings from the comprehensive review of West Yorkshire
Joint Services be presented to this Committee prior to a final decision being made.

5 Hate Crime Scrutiny Review.

6 Antisocial and illegal use of
Fireworks Scrutiny Review.

The Council requests Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to do a wholesale
review wihtin the next six months of the use of fireworks in our neighourhoods. Partners
in the review should be the Police, Fire Service, Trading Standards and Licensing.

Mustansir Butt.

Council Resolution from Tuesday 12
September 2019.

7 Hanson School's Financial
Position.

Update on the School's Financial position be presnted to the Committee at a future
meeting.

Marium Haque/Chris
Chapman/Andrew
Redding.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 6 February
2020.

8 District Plan.

Annual Report to be presnted in 12 months and to also include actual targets against the
District Plan.

Philip Witcherley.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 23 January
2020. Following disucssions with the Chair
and Phil Witcherley - District plan priorities
and how we are organising partnerships in
the future COVID world.

9 Gambling.

The Cross Departmental and Cross Organisational Plan be presented to this Committee
in 6 months. The departments involved in the devlopment of the Plan should include but
not be limited to Public Haealth, Children's Social Care and probation/youth servic

Francis Towers/Ralph
Saunders.

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
recommendation from Thursday 16 January
2020.

Page 1 of 1

This page is intentionally left blank

